
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 

Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Minutes of June 4, 2014

4. Executive Director’s Report

5. GIS – How We Use It… How You Can Use It
~ Robert Keough, Senior GIS Planner 

6. Act 247 Reviews

7. Old Business

8. New Business

9. Public Comment

10. Adjournment

Please remember to contact us at 
215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 

Wednesday, July 2, 2014
2:00 P.M. 

Meeting Cancelled



2 
 

  



3 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 

June 4, 2014 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; David R. Nyman; Robert 

M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
 

Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; Richard G. Brahler, Jr.; Paul Gordon; 
David Johnson; Dennis Livrone; Margaret McKevitt; David A. Sebastian; 
Patricia Stockett; Bryan Guthrie, Intern; Jonathan Letisio, Intern 
 

GUESTS: Christopher T. Edwards, Director of Bucks County Public Information; 
Larry Menkes, Warminster resident 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:10 PM. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF MAY 7, 2014 
Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-0-1 the motion carried 
to approve the minutes of the May 7, 2014 meeting. Mr. Goodnoe abstained as he was not present. 
 

4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board with the meeting packet prior to the 
meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush provided the board with a brief update from the last meeting about the Cross Keys 
Project. She received approval from the county commissioners to apply for a $100,000 Delaware 
Valley Regional Planning Commission grant to enhance and further the study of this area. A 
meeting with the Buckingham Township Board of Supervisors generated a newspaper article 
prompting new interest and involvement from local businesses and land owners. 
 
On May 31st Ms. Bush attended Bristol Borough’s “Raising the Bar” event celebrating their 
revitalization and economic development efforts. The money raised from the event will be used 
to beautify and market the Borough, along with other improvement projects. She reported that 
the Borough received $50,000 in façade grants for Mill Street. Ms. Bush commented that the 
residents are very committed, doing a super job and it was encouraging to be there to see what 
they are doing. 
 
Ms. Bush referenced the handout on the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) which was 
given out at the meeting. She stated that the TIP draft for fiscal year 2015-2018 is available online, 
and there is a public comment period now open. Mr. Brahler described the public comment 
process and how to use the website which has an interactive mapping service that can sort TIP 
projects by county and municipality. He encouraged all to make a public comment and said that 
all comments will be answered individually by the planning commission. 
Ms. Bush announced that the county commissioners have extended the open space program 



4 
 

deadline giving the 54 municipalities two more years to apply for grants to preserve land. 
 
Ms. Bush will attend the Bucks County consortium meeting tomorrow. She will provide 
information on topics that affect the municipalities such as: the TIP program, especially the Bristol 
Road extension project which is back on the TIP for Chalfont and New Britain Boroughs and 
New Britain Township; the open space deadline extension; and the community development block 
grant program. 
 

5. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE BUCKS2INVEST LOAN PROGRAMS AND FUNDING 
Margaret McKevitt, the County’s coordinator of Economic Development and Planning Services 
gave a presentation on the Bucks2Invest loan programs and funding available to businesses. She 
handed out a brochure listing all the current financing programs which are: Bucks Guaranteed, 
Bucks Rebuilt, Bucks Renewed, Core Industry Fund, New Economy Fund, Taste & Tour Bucks 
County, and VC4BC. She explained the purpose of each loan, the approval process, guidelines 
and the criteria required. She gave a background and overview on the initiative which was first 
introduced by the county commissioners in February, 2013. The initiative was created to spur 
economic development growth within Bucks County in part through efforts of the Bucks County 
Industrial Development Authority which coordinates economic development activities and 
administers the financing programs for new and existing businesses. She gave details on the 
workforce development program which is through the Bucks County Community College (BCCC) 
which trains unemployed and underemployed persons in metal fabrication and precision 
machining to fill manufacturing job openings in Bucks County. 
 
Board discussion focused on publicizing the Bucks2Invest initiative and business contacts to apply 
for the loans. 
 
Larry Menkes of 741 Clifford Street in Warminster, PA inquired if the workforce development 
program was limited to sheet metal working and fabrication. Ms. McKevitt responded that it is 
the first of its kind in partnership with BCCC and as of right now it is limited. 
 

6. UPPER NESHAMINY CREEK TRAIL FEASIBILITY STUDY 
Paul Gordon provided a PowerPoint demonstration entitled Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Study. He 
informed the board that the study can be viewed and is advertised on the Bucks County website: 
buckscounty.org. He gave a brief history, background, and overview of the study. The purpose of 
the study was to determine the feasibility and best routing for a multi-use trail system along the 
Neshaminy Creek. The Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail includes: Buckingham, Doylestown, New 
Britain, Warwick and Wrightstown townships and Chalfont and New Britain boroughs. Back in 
April, he presented the study to 50-60 people in a public meeting at the Doylestown Library and 
received enthusiastic feedback from the audience. He will present the study to the county board 
of commissioners on June 18. He stated that he is here to obtain recommendation from the board 
so the study can be approved and adopted by the Bucks County board of commissioners. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino inquired about the length of the trail. Mr. Gordon responded the route is a little 
over 15 miles. Board discussion followed about the prioritization of the phases, costs, riparian 
buffers, environmental issues, entry points, contact landowners and communicating with 
municipalities. 
 
 
Ms. Bush explained that there is unprecedented funding available included in the new TIP which 
has $10 million in line items specifically for trails. Timing is important and we want to be poised 



5 
 

to take advantage of that. She said that the BCPC has made the report available to municipalities 
and is engaging them by laying out concepts and connecting points so the municipalities can act 
and consider the trail as part of a proposed development plan or their own recreational 
programming. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions or comments. Having no further questions, 
on motion of Mr. Dowling, seconded by Mr. Wydro the board unanimously recommended 
approval of the Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Study to the Bucks County Board of Commissioners. 
 

7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of June 4, 2014 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. Mr. 
Pellegrino polled the board for any questions on the reviews. On motion of Mr. Stone, seconded 
by Mr. Goodnoe the board approved the June 4, 2014 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
BCPC Tour Proposal of the Vertical Screen Headquarters in Warminster, PA: Ms. Bush opened 
the floor for discussion on touring the Vertical Screen Headquarters in Warminster, PA. She said 
that the building in itself is fascinating and has set a new standard in sustainable building design 
achieving a LEED Platinum score in Pennsylvania. She gave a brief overview of the business doing 
high level security background checks and having three shifts. She advised that when Vertical 
Screen approved the concept of having the BCPC board members visit the site, they asked that 
we offer a couple of dates. Ms. Bush requested input from the board for potential dates to tour 
the facility. Ms. Pierce advised that Tuesdays and Fridays will not work for her. Mr. Pellegrino 
agreed that Friday is not a good day. It was agreed that the purpose of the visit be for a tour only 
with no meeting scheduled on that day. Ms. Bush announced that she will pick some dates and 
circulate them for approval via email. 
 
Resolution Supporting the Redesignation of Business Route 202: Mr. Brahler began the 
presentation by stating that late last year when the Route 202 parkway project was officially named 
as U.S. Route 202, it caused some confusion for the businesses along the stretch of road that was 
once known as Route 202. He used a map to define the corridor that was once known as Route 
202. Beginning in Montgomery County (Montgomery Township) Route 309 to County Line Road 
is now known as Doylestown Road; as the road extends through New Britain Township, Chalfont 
and New Britain Boroughs and Doylestown Township the road is now known as West Butler and 
East Butler avenues. In Bucks County the length of the road is approximately 6.8 miles long and 
begins at Route 309 and extends to the Doylestown Bypass (Route 611). He was contacted by the 
Chalfont-New Britain Business Alliance about creating a business route. He walked the board 
through the process of naming the corridor U.S. Business Route 202. He added that there must 
be complete agreement among the municipalities along the corridor along with the Bucks and 
Montgomery planning commissions and the American Association of State Highway 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 
 
Mr. Dowling commented that there is general confusion not just with the businesses involved, but 
among the clients or customers of the retailers as to where the business is located. 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further comments or questions. Having no further questions, 
the board reviewed the proposed resolution. Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. 
Dowling, the board unanimously approved a resolution to designate Doylestown Road/Butler 



6 
 

Avenue as U.S. Business Route 202 (Attachment A). 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There was no public comment. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino adjourned the meeting at 3:15 PM. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Patricia Stockett 
Staff Secretary 

 

  



7 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

June 2014 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PLANNING 

 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular monthly planning commission meetings of New 
Britain Borough, Buckingham Township and Perkasie Borough.  

 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Working on plan sections related to 
goals and objectives and implementation measures. Began preparation of the complete second 
draft. 

 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Finalized the public review draft for the 
borough planning commission’s review. 

 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Revised the Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
chapter. 

 Northampton Township—Made a presentation at the Board of Supervisors’ regularly 
scheduled meeting, where the supervisors considered adoption of the Holland Master Plan. 

 Upper Makefield Township—Development of an enhanced report of the public visioning 
meeting for the Taylorsville study area.  

 Upper Southampton Township—Development of a report of the land use survey of the 
industrial zoning district area. Compiling information from realtors representing properties that 
are listed for sale or lease. 

 West Rockhill Township—Conducted a Town Hall Meeting to get resident input on the 
direction of the Almont Village plan. Collecting background information on the village.  

 Brownsville Road Corridor Study (Lower Southampton/Bensalem townships)—Assessed 
the ideas/issues provided through the staff charrette and prepared tentative implementation 
strategies/actions. 

 Cross Keys Study—Inventory and data collection for the study. Submitted an application to 
DVRPC for a Transportation and Community Development Initiative (TCDI) grant for the 
project. 

 Springfield Township—Development of the sewage capacity analysis for the Development 
Area and Route 309 Corridor. 

 East Rockhill Township—Presented a summary of the Economic Development Initiative 
Report and the Bucks2Invest programs to the Board of Supervisors.  
 

Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including demographic and 

socioeconomic data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal 
regulations. 

 Analyzing cluster regulations for Perkasie Borough. 
 Assessed potential assistance to and attended meeting of the Bicycle Task Force. 
 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
  



8 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
 23 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
 1 Sketch Plan 
 5 Municipals 
 5 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 
 2 Traffic Impact Studies 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 

Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Assessment: West Branch 3 (Reading Creek) and   
Neshaminy Tributary 3 (Fish Creek) CZM Grant Application 
 Scoping opportunities to utilize GPS system to track findings during stream assessments and 

inventory of stormwater infrastructure facilities. 
 
William Penn Foundation: Poquessing Watershed Cluster 
 Finalized problem areas within the watershed for restoration and retrofit. 
 Selected points where monitoring for water quality can be conducted. 
 Conducted deed searches for land ownership information for parcels surrounding problem areas 

in order to conduct educational outreach. 
 Further review of Act 167 plan and habitat assessment plans to identify problem areas and 

opportunities for improvement.  
 
Stormwater Management  
 Assisted municipal engineers and residents regarding stormwater management issues. 
 
Natural Resources  
 Working with a watershed association on riparian buffer guidance and ordinance language. 
 Working with a municipality regarding development of native plant ordinance language. 
 
Integrated Water Resources Planning Work Program 
 Inventoried planning staff and conducted online search for all watershed-related plans, reports 

and studies.  
 Developed database to track findings. 
 Review watershed information, problem areas and proposed implementation projects 

documented. 
 

Summer Interns Coordination 
 Trained interns regarding environmental unit initiatives and work programming. 

 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 
 Presented final version of Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study to Bucks County 

Planning Commission board members and Bucks County Commissioners for adoption.  
 Attended Doylestown Bike & Hike Committee meeting. 
 Developing narrative of Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 
 Secured agreements with consulting engineers for Lower and Middle Neshaminy Creek trail 

feasibility studies. 



9 
 

 Met with consulting engineer on Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek trail study to discuss cost 
estimating. 

 Supplied PA DCNR with requested information relative to Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail 
Feasibility Study. 

 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting at our current electronic 

recycler’s plant.  
 Preparing first two chapters of the Bucks County Municipal Waste Plan update. 
 Attended DEP training course on online recycling data entry. 
 Preparing for next HHW event. 
 Summer intern worked on preparing draft of the Recycling Guide 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 
 Calling municipalities that have not committed to participating in the HM Plan Update. (Need one 

back). 
 Getting FEMA grant-entry certified. 
 
Green Committee 
 Drafted memo to department concerning toner recycling program. 
 Helping establish office recycling program at Children & Youth agency’s new offices. 
 Presented paper reduction survey finding, analysis, and preliminary recommendations to The 

Green Committee at their June 17th meeting. 
 
 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

General Transportation Planning   
 Working on project to determine the feasibility of renaming Butler Pike to Business Route 202. 

Began collecting signed municipal support resolutions. 
 Processed FY2015 DVRPC contracts for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program, 

Transit Support Program and Regional GIS Program. 
 Attended Synchro Green Adaptive Traffic Systems Seminar. 
 Attended Transportation Operations Task Force Meeting to discuss Traffic Signals Operations. 
    
Public Transportation 
 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 
 SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II. Met with TMA Bucks to discuss 

report finalization. 
 Received approval for Pennridge Modeling Project for inclusion in the Regional Transit Advisory 

Committee work program. 
 Attended Regional Transit Advisory Committee Meeting. 
 Coordinated with SEPTA regarding bicycle issues at Levittown Station. 
 Attended TMA of Bucks County Board Luncheon. 
 Participated in Roosevelt Boulevard Better Bus Project teleconference. 
  
 



10 
 

Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 Attended Northampton Township Board of Supervisors Meeting to discuss Village of Holland 

Study. 
 Attended Almont Village Town Hall Meeting. Continued developing computer-enhanced imagery 

for Almont Study. 
 Attended staff meeting to discuss Cross Keys Project.  
  
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 
 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding Transportation Improvement Program Update process.  
 Attended Pennsylvania Subcommittee of the RTC to discuss Municipal Bridge Line Item.  
 Attended Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 
 Attended Kickoff meeting for Route 611 Transportation Study. 
 Attended status meeting for County Line Road widening project. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
 Database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
 Updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
 Coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
 Development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
 Updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
 GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
 Support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
 Technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 
 Editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 
 Editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 
 Began updating and testing of latest GIS software versions on desktop systems. 
 Attended Bucks County Leadership meeting at BCCC. 
 Attended SE 9-1-1 Shared Services meeting in Conshohocken.  
 
GIS Map Production 
> Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
>  Developing series of maps of county parks and facilities for print and web deployment. 
 
GIS Transportation 
>  Development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 

 











































































































































































































































 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 

 
 
 
 

Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of June 4, 2014 

 
4. Executive Director’s Report 

 
5. GIS – How We Use It… How You Can Use It 

~ Robert Keough, Senior GIS Planner 
 

6. Act 247 Reviews (June and July 2014) 
 

7. Old Business 
 

8. New Business 
 

9. Public Comment 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 

Wednesday, August 6, 2014
2:00 P.M. 



2 
 

  



3 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director Report 

July 2014 

 
Transportation Improvement Program – Commissioner Marseglia and I attended the DVRPC 
board meeting where the TIP was approved for 2015-2017.  Bucks County did very well in terms of 
money allocated to our projects, mainly because of the I-95–Turnpike connection and the Levittown 
Train Station. The I-95–Turnpike project is not fully funded for future phases, and the connection 
that is funded will only accomplish a partial new intersection (not all exit ramps and entrance ramps). 
The BCPC presentation on the TIP which occurred in May is quite close to what was funded. 
 
DVRPC – Other funding approved by the DVRPC Board: 

 PennDOT funding for trails to two projects: 
o Neshaminy Greenway Trail to Lenape Lane - $800,000 
o Solebury Route 202 Gateway Trail - $980,859 

 Repaving Projects: 
o $13.9 million in resurfacing projects was approved for Street Road, Route 611, and 

Second Street Pike 
 
Local Bridge Line Item in TIP – This is an important new component in the TIP, conceived by 
and championed by Bucks County (Rich Brahler in particular). This will be TIP money set aside for 
township/borough bridges. Now there will be a competitive program that municipalities can 
participate in directly. 
 
Municipal Economic Development Program – It looks promising that we will be successful in 
getting grants of about $200,000 for our work with Cross Keys and with New Britain Borough. That 
will not all go to the County, but it will enhance our ability to contract for some traffic and 
transportation services needed to develop specific plans for these areas. 
 
We have added Quakertown and Trumbauersville boroughs to our list of municipalities in the 
economic development program. 

 Met with the Plumstead Township Board of Supervisors to discuss Cross Keys study 
 Met with Lower Makefield and with Solebury on their comprehensive plan updates (projects 

BCPC has been hired to work on). 
  



4 
 

 

  



5 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

July 2014 
 
PLANNING SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PLANNING 

 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular monthly planning commission meetings of New 
Britain, Perkasie, and Sellersville boroughs, Buckingham Township, and the Quakertown Area 
Planning Committee. 

 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Presented plan sections on  goals and 
objectives and implementation measures to the township’s planning commission in anticipation 
of the complete second draft. 

 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Completed the Future Land Use chapter. Met with 
the township comprehensive plan group to discuss chapter.  

 Upper Makefield Township—Development of an enhanced report of the public visioning 
meeting for the Taylorsville study area.  

 Upper Southampton Township—Development of a report of the land use survey of the 
industrial zoning district area. Compiling information from realtors representing properties that 
are listed for sale or lease. 

 West Rockhill Township—Compiled results of the Town Hall Meeting development 
preference exercise; collecting background information on the village.  

 Cross Keys Study—Inventory and data collection for the study.  
 Solebury Township—Revised and edited the draft comprehensive plan to address township 

officials’ comments and suggestions.  
 Springfield Township—Continued development of the sewage capacity analysis for the 

Development Area and Route 309 Corridor. 
 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including demographic and 

socioeconomic data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning, and municipal 
regulations. 

 Began the creation of a planning workbook for municipal officials’ use in implementing, tracking 
and monitoring comprehensive plan recommendations. 

 Completed a study of Perkasie Borough’s cluster regulations. 
 Assessed potential assistance to and attended meeting of the Bicycle Task Force. 
 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings.  
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
 15 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
 0 Sketch Plans 
 9 Municipals 
 5 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 
 1 Traffic Impact Study 

 
 



6 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Stormwater Management  
 Assisted municipal engineers and residents regarding stormwater management issues. 
 
William Penn Foundation: Poquessing Watershed Cluster 
 Worked with GIS and intern to prepare maps of problem areas and potential monitoring sites 

upstream and downstream of proposed project areas. 
 Conducted deed searches for land ownership information for parcels and HOAs within Lower 

Southampton and Bensalem Townships 
 Began to identify groups to be contacted to participate in educational training regarding 

watersheds and watershed planning and also those interested in becoming citizen monitors. 
 
Natural Resources  
 Working to identify and develop ordinance language for Bridgeton Township that addresses noise 

and pesticides use. 
 
Integrated Water Resources Planning Work Program 
 Conducted library search and search of shared folders to identify all watershed planning 

documents, reports and studies for future review. 
 Inventoried planning staff and conducted online search for all watershed-related plans, reports 

and studies.  
 Began to review documents to identify watershed information, problem areas and proposed 

implementation projects documented. 
 

Summer Interns Coordination 
 Continue to train and work with interns regarding environmental unit initiatives and work 

programming. 
 

Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 
 Attended Doylestown Bike & Hike Committee meeting. 
 Continued developing narrative of Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 
 Met with consulting engineer on Middle Neshaminy Creek trail study to discuss potential routing 

options. 
 Held steering committee meeting for the Lower Neshaminy Creek Trail study 
 Conducted public meeting on 7/22 for the Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail study. 
 
Coastal Zone Management 
 Attended annual summer planning meeting of the Delaware Estuary Coastal Zone Management 

Steering Committee. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting with Household Hazardous 

Waste collection vendor.  
 Preparing chapters of the Bucks County Municipal Waste Plan update. 
 Preparing for Household Hazardous Waste events. 
 Finished draft of the Recycling Guide. 



7 
 

 Coordinated on toner recycling within County departments. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 
 Working on updating grant application. 
 Getting FEMA grant-entry certified. 
 
Green Committee 
 Obtained 400 recycling bins to help expend recycling program. 

 
 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
General Transportation Planning   
 Working on project to determine the feasibility of renaming Butler Pike to Business Route 202. 

Completed collecting signed municipal support resolutions. Provided draft application to 
PennDOT for review and comment. 

 Processed DVRPC Monthly Reports for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program and 
Transit Support Program. Began developing annual report for SRHPP. 

 Attended internal meeting to discuss Bucks County Bike Task Force. Reviewed and revised Task 
Force By-laws. Attended Regional Bike Committee Meeting. 

 Reviewed Bucks County Transportation Community Development Initiative applications. 
Provided rankings to DVRPC. Attended TCDI Review Committee Meeting. 

 Attended site visit for proposed freight rail improvements Rural Transit Assistance Program 
application for SMS Rail Lines. Reviewed RTAP applications for SMS Rail Lines and USX. 

 Attended Bucks County Incident Management Committee Meeting. 
    
Public Transportation 
 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 
 Continued report development for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II.  
 Reviewed SEPTA FY 2015 Annual Service Plan. 
 Participated in Roosevelt Boulevard Better Bus Project Workshop. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 Attended Review/Design Meeting for Knoell Property. 
 Attended Almont Village Meeting with Perkasie Regional Authority. Continued developing 

computer-enhanced imagery for Almont Study. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 
 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding Transportation Improvement Program Update process. 

Provided responses to TIP comments to DVRPC. 
 Attended Pennsylvania Subcommittee of the RTC to discuss Municipal Bridge Line Item.  
 Attended Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 
 Attended Bridge Evaluation Committee Meeting. 
 Attended Tohickon Creek Bridge Improvement Project Meeting. 



8 
 

 Reviewed Route 611 Corridor Project Study Purpose and Needs Statement. Provided proposed 
land development database to consultant. 

 Attended DVRPC Board Meeting/Transportation Funding Recognition Luncheon. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 
 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 
 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 
 Continued updating and testing of latest GIS software versions on desktop systems. 
 Attended SE PA 9-1-1 GIS Shared Services meeting in Eagleville PA.  
 Attended GIS meeting of Consumer Protection and Weights and Measures staff. 
 Provided GIS Consortium data updates to East Rockhill Township. 
 Provided GIS data for Route 611 Transportation Study to PADOT consultant. 
 Produced evacuation maps to Warminster Township Emergency Management Dir. 
 Attended demonstration on electronic recording at Recorder of Deeds office. 
 Produced site plan map of potential property acquisition for Parks Department. 
 
GIS Map Production 
>  Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
>  Continued development of maps of county parks and facilities for print and web deployment. 
 
GIS Transportation 
>  Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 











































































































































































































































 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING 
 

 

 

 

Robert H. Grunmeier Room 

1260 Almshouse Road 

Doylestown, PA 18901 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Approval of Minutes of August 6, 2014 

 

4. Executive Director’s Report 

 
5. Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area Report & Certified Redevelopment 

Area Plan 

~ Jeff Darwak, Bucks County Redevelopment Authority 

 

6. Act 247 Reviews 

 

7. Old Business 

 

8. New Business 
 

9. Public Comment 

 

10. Adjournment 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 

Wednesday, September 3, 2014 

2:00 P.M. 



2 

  



3 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 

August 6, 2014 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen; James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Edward 
Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Evan J. Stone; Walter S. Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
 

Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; David Johnson; Robert Keough; 
Timothy A. Koehler; David A. Sebastian; Patricia Stockett; Maureen 
Wheatley; Bryan Guthrie, Intern; Jonathan Letisio, Intern 
 

GUESTS: Jessica Blair, Marquis Robert, and Brad Warner from Fairless Credit Union 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2014 
Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 8-0-1 the motion carried 
to approve the minutes of the June 4, 2014 meeting. Mr. Goodnoe abstained as he was not present. 
 

4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush stated that the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) recently 
adopted the new funding plan for 2015-2017 with Bucks County receiving about $5.5 million for 
transportation funding. She described how the funding will enable Bucks County to move forward 
with several very important transportation projects, such as the I-95–Turnpike connection, Route 
1 in Lower Bucks County, County Line Road and the Levittown Train Station. 
 
Ms. Bush announced a new DVRPC transportation improvement funding program called the 
Municipal Bridge Retro-Reimbursement Program (MBRP) which was conceived by Bucks County 
and championed by Rich Brahler of the BCPC transportation staff. It is an effort on the part of 
Bucks County to ease the burden on small townships and boroughs who have huge bridge repair 
bills and will reduce the number of structurally-deficient, locally-owned bridges. She explained it 
as a competitive process in which municipalities will apply for reimbursement after the completion 
of bridge repairs. She stated that all four counties, (Bucks, Chester, Delaware and Montgomery) 
along with PennDot agreed to support this new program. 
  
Ms. Bush used the new Rockhill Road Bridge in East Rockhill Township as an example of the 
MBRP program. On Friday, August 1, she attended the official ribbon cutting ceremony. The 
work to rehabilitate this bridge began in March, with the township investing more than $1 million 
of its own money to have the repairs completed. East Rockhill Township will now begin the 
process of applying for 80 percent retroactive reimbursement with PennDOT. 
 
 



4 

Ms. Bush informed the board that next week is the Middletown Grange Fair which runs from 
August 13-17. The BCPC will have displays highlighting planning programs, the Open Space and 
Farmland Preservation Programs, the Household Hazardous Waste and Old Electronics Recycling 
Program. The Bucks County Bicycle Task Force, which promotes safe biking in Bucks County, 
will also have a display. Ms. Bush invited the board to come and check out the displays in the 
county tent. 
 
Ms. Bush informed the board that Roger Collins joined the County of Bucks as director of 
Housing and Community Development on July 28. His experience and knowledge of the 
community will be an asset to the department. Formerly, he was executive director of the Bucks 
County Opportunity Council for 12 years. Ms. Bush said he will attend one of our future meetings. 
 
Mr. Cullen inquired about plans for the old courthouse once the new Justice Center opens. Ms. 
Bush replied that the county has hired the architectural firm Dewberry from Fairfax, Virginia to 
study and provide plans. Ideas include potentially selling real estate such as 50 North Main Street 
in order to consolidate offices into the vacated space. She said that she can have someone come 
and present an overview. 
 

5. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) – HOW WE USE IT...HOW YOU CAN USE IT 
Robert Keough, BCPC Senior GIS Planner gave the presentation using Power Point. He provided 
an overview of the capabilities of the Bucks County GIS department. He identified venues where 
you may have seen the use of GIS including your cell phone, Global Positioning System (GPS), 
Google, movies, and television shows. He explained how GIS is utilized across Bucks County 
within more than 15 departments. The Planning Commission uses GIS data for mapping and 
analysis to identify areas suitable for different types of development or open space. He 
demonstrated how the Health Department uses its mobile GIS well inspection data collection 
system which was developed by the BCPC GIS department. He said that daily approximately 75-
100 members of the general public access and view online the Bucks and Floodplain Web viewers.  
Utilizing a software tool resource called Business Analyst Online, he walked the board through 
how to identify potential market areas and prepare a location analysis for economic development 
and businesses. He summarized by emphasizing the unlimited future potential use of GIS data 
within Bucks County to improve productivity and services to citizens. Mr. Keough polled the 
group for questions. 
 
Board discussion focused on the services available through joining the GIS consortium group for 
a fee of $2,000. Mr. Keough spoke briefly about the user support provided to the 40 townships 
and boroughs that are onboard and use GIS every day. 
 

6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
Ms. Bush referenced BCPC review #13-14-3(P) which was handed out at the meeting. It is a Falls 
Township Zoning Map Change and the applicant is Fairless Credit Union. She clarified that after 
the packet was sent out, a revised plan came in so we had to update it and make some minor last 
minute changes. Tim Koehler is aware of it and can explain the details. 
 
Ms. Bush highlighted BCPC review #7415-A for Sellersville Borough which is in the packet. It is 
a Preliminary/Final Plan of Subdivision for the Sellersville Business Campus. Ms. Bush provided 
background on the former AMETEK industrial site which is approximately 44 acres. The Bucks 
County Industrial Development Authority (IDA) has secured a $4.5 million grant from the 
Pennsylvania Department of Community & Economic Development to acquire the property and 
put in the improvements to redevelop the site. The project will provide six improved, developable 



5 

parcels for purchase. Bucks County will use its resources to attract new businesses and jobs. Ms. 
Bush said that she will keep the board updated on this project as it moves forward. 
 
Due to the cancellation of the July BCPC Board Meeting, the reviews of July 2 and August 6 were 
mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for any 
questions on the reviews. On motion of Ms. Pierce, seconded by Mr. Nyman the board approved 
both the July 2 and August 6, 2014 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There was no public comment. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino adjourned the meeting at 2:55 PM. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Patricia Stockett 
Staff Secretary 

 

  



6 

  



7 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director Report 

August 2014 

 

Quakertown Borough – Several of the staff met with Quakertown. They are enthusiastic about 

doing some improvements to their downtown, and they are asking for our guidance.  

 

Bristol Borough – Bristol Borough continues to have a devoted group of citizens who are moving 

ahead with their revitalization. We are providing guidance on tax abatement programs, for residential 

and nonresidential properties. Many communities now seem interested in LERTA, a tax abatement 

approach for commercial properties. 

 

Grange Fair Displays – The displays were well received and will be in our meeting room at the 

BCPC meeting for you all to see. 

 

Household Hazardous Waste – we completed our season of collection events, again with 

overwhelming responses. The collection of electronics gets more complicated every year, with 

shifting pricing, people removing the valuable metals before they bring them to the collection 

events, and general confusion about what needs to be recycled. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



8 

 

 

  



9 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
August 2014 

 

PLANNING SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PLANNING 

 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular monthly planning commission meetings of New 
Britain Borough, Buckingham Township, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 

 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of the complete 
second draft. 

 Northampton Township Village Commercial Design Guidelines—Executed contract for 
the project and began staff discussions on project scope and scheduling. 

 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Revised the Future Land Use chapter.  Began 
second draft revisions.  

 Upper Makefield Township—Development of an enhanced report of the public visioning 
meeting for the Taylorsville study area.  

 Upper Southampton Township—Completed final draft of the Industrial Area Study report. 

 West Rockhill Township—Continued collecting background information on the village of 
Almont. Began drafting the introduction and land use chapter.   

 Cross Keys Study—Continued inventory and data collection for the study.  

 Brownsville Road Study—Prepared revised draft of initial report and met with Bensalem and 
Lower Southampton representatives to further scope out the project.  

 Solebury Township—Revised the draft comprehensive plan per township officials’ comments 
and suggestions.  

 Springfield Township—Continued development of the sewage capacity analysis for the 
Development Area and Route 309 Corridor concentrating on revising the model to account for 
building and sewage system setback requirements and existing site conditions. 

 Yardley Borough––Met with Yardley Borough's zoning officer to discuss comprehensive plan 
comments prior to plan adoption by municipal officials.  

 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 

 Provided information about BCPC services and programs to the public at the Grange Fair. 

 Provided information to the public on various topics including demographic and socioeconomic 
data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning, and municipal regulations. Attended 
meeting of the Bicycle Task Force and assisted with BTF Grange Fair display 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings.  

 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 

 15 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 

 3   Sketch Plans 

 3 Municipals 

 1 Sewage Facility Planning Module 

 1 Traffic Impact Study 
 

 
 



10 

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
Stormwater Management  

 Assisted municipal engineers and residents regarding stormwater management issues. 
 
William Penn Foundation: Poquessing Watershed Cluster 

 Researched land ownership information for parcels and HOAs within Lower Southampton and 
Bensalem Townships 

 Identifying groups to be contacted to inquire participation in watershed educational training to 
become citizen monitors. 

 Began to develop watershed monitoring program and associated educational materials and 
guidelines. 

 Plan for public kick-off meeting scheduled for September.  
 
Natural Resources  

 Update of New Hope Borough Floodplain ordinance to be in compliance with FEMA’s 
requirements. 

 
Integrated Water Resources Planning Work Program 

 Continue to review documents to identify watershed information, problem areas and proposed 
implementation projects documented. 

 Met with Poquessing group to discuss and develop habitat assessment guidelines and worksheets 
that citizen monitors can utilize when conducting monitoring. The results can be used in other 
Bucks County watersheds. 
 

Grants   

 Continue to research grants for opportunities to implement recommendations of the Neshaminy 
Creek Watershed Sediment Reduction Plan. 
 

Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 

 Attended Doylestown Bike & Hike Committee meeting. 

 Finalized narrative of Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Started site analysis on Middle Neshaminy Creek trail study. 

 Conducted public meeting on 8/5 for the Lower Neshaminy Creek Trail study. 

 Met with representatives from Heritage Conservancy relative to their future role in 
implementation of the Neshaminy Creek Trail project. 

 Met with representatives from Appalachian Mountain Club relative to status of various trail 
planning efforts in the Quakertown area. 

 Held brainstorming session relative to next steps for trails in Bucks County. 

 Initiated site analysis for Lower Neshaminy Creek Trail Study. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 

 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting with current vendor.  

 Preparing first two chapters of the Bucks County Municipal Waste Plan update. 

 Preparing for next HHW event. 

 Finished draft of the Recycling Guide. 
 
 



11 

Hazard Mitigation Planning 

 Working on updating grant application. 

 Getting FEMA grant-entry certified. 

 Attended “Legal Aspects of Hazard Mitigation” workshop held by PEMA in Harrisburg. 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

 
General Transportation Planning   

 Continued working on project to determine the feasibility of renaming Butler Pike to Business 
Route 202. Coordinated with PennDOT for review and comment. 

 Produced Annual Report of Activity for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program. 

 Participated in Pennsylvania Long Range Transportation Plan Webinar. 

 Provided Transportation Budget information for fiscal year 2015 to department bookkeeper. 

 Attended Bucks County Trails Committee Meeting. Developed information related to the 
Newtown Rail Trail and East Coast Greenway. 

 Participated in webinar to discuss improving roadway safety by assessing compliance with Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

    
Public Transportation 

 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 

 Continued report development for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II.  

 Reviewed SEPTA FY 2015 Capital Budget. 

 Reviewed information for Roosevelt Boulevard Better Bus Project. 
  
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 

 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 

 Attended Almont Village internal staff meeting. Continued developing computer-enhanced 
imagery for Almont Study. Began production of Transportation section. 

  
Transportation Improvement Program 

 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 

 Produced and submitted TIP amendment request for three additional bridges for Act 13 funding. 

 Reviewed 15 Requests for Qualifications for County Bridge #333. Provided rankings to 
Purchasing Department. Attended Consultant Selection Meeting. Attended Bucks County Local 
Bridge Coordination Meeting. 

 Provided Municipal Bridge Program information to all municipalities. Responded to various 
questions regarding program eligibility. 

 Reviewed Route 611 Corridor Project Study Purpose and Needs Statement. Provided consensus 
letter to consultant. Attended Project Status Meetings for Zone 3 and Zone 2/4/5. 

 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 

 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 

 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 

 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 

 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 

 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 



12 

 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 

 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 

 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 

 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 

 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 

 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 

 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 

 Continued updating and testing of latest GIS software versions on desktop systems. 

 Attended SE PA 9-1-1 GIS Shared Services meeting at Montgomery Co. Training Campus.  

 Provided GIS Consortium data updates to Northampton and Plumstead Townships. 

 Attended GIS Python programming training webinar. 

 Met with AAA Director Najja Orr to discuss possible GIS uses and applications. 
 
GIS Map Production 
>  Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
>  Continued development of maps of county parks and facilities for print and web deployment. 
 
GIS Transportation 
>  Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 



























































































































































pg. 1 
 

Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area Report 
& 

Certified Redevelopment Area Plan 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Prepared by: 

Redevelopment Authority 
of the County of Bucks 

 
August 2014 

 



pg. 2 
 

 
BUCKS COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Robert G. Loughery, Chairman 

 
Charles H. Martin, Vice Chairman                                     Diane M. Ellis-Marseglia 
 
Brian Hessenthaler, Chief Operating Officer                   Lynn T. Bush, Chief Clerk 
 

 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

                 Robert M. Pellegrino, Chairman 
 
David R. Nyman, Vice Chairman                                 Walter S. Wydro, Secretary 
Joseph A. Cullen, Jr., Esq.                                              James J. Dowling 
Raymond W. Goodnoe                                                  Edward Kisselback Jr. 
Carol A. Pierce                                                                 Evan J. Stone 

 

Lynn T. Bush, Executive Director 
 

 

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
OF THE COUNTY OF BUCKS 

 
Patricia L. Bachtle, Chairman 

 
Ray J. Chapman, Vice Chairman                                  William M. Pezza, Treasurer 
Sean D. Schafer, Secretary                                            Ted Christian, Asst. Sec/Treas 
 

Robert White, Executive Director 



pg. 3 
 

Table of Contents 

Section I – Existing Conditions Report 

Introduction        Pg.  5 

Vision, Mission, Goals       Pg.  6 

Brief Overview of Sellersville Borough    Pg.  7 

General Site Description       Pg.  7 

Boundary Map        Pg.  8 

Existing Conditions and Summary of Reports   Pg.  9 

Photo Documentation       Pg. 17  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) Letter of Support – Sellersville Borough     
 

2) Resolution – Bucks County Planning Commission   



pg. 4 
 

Table of Contents 

Section II – Certified Redevelopment Area Plan 

Boundaries          Pg. 30 

Zoning          Pg. 32  

Land Use          Pg. 32 

Preliminary Site Plan        Pg. 33 

Rehousing of Families         Pg. 33 

Street Layouts, Street Levels, & Proposed Traffic Regulation  Pg. 34 

Acquisition and Redevelopment Costs     Pg. 35 

Standards & Controls        Pg. 35 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) Certified Redevelopment Area Map 
 

2) Site Plan 
 

3) Sellersville Borough Zoning Map 
 

4) Resolution – Bucks County Planning Commission  
 

5) Resolution – Bucks County Commissioners  
 

6) Resolution – Bucks County Redevelopment Authority 
 

7) Public Hearing Notice         
 

 



pg. 5 
 

SECTION I – EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

 

INTRODUCTION  

WHAT ARE “CERTIFIED REDEVELOPMENT AREAS” 

 

Certified Redevelopment Areas (CRAs) are areas in a community which may need 
improvement because the existence of the following conditions may be present: 

 

1. unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions  

2. inadequate planning  

3. excessive land coverage  

4. lack of proper light, air and open space  

5. faulty street and lot layout  

6. defective design and arrangement of buildings  

7. economically or socially undesirable land use  

 

The presence of any one of these criterion in an area establishes the need for a CRA 
designation. It is not necessary to demonstrate that all seven criterion exists, nor is it 
necessary to demonstrate that all properties in a study area are in need of improvement. 
Comprehensive planning requires that proposed CRAs are considered in their entirety and 
not in severable parts. 

CRAs are established in areas designated by the Planning Commission of the County or City 
in which a Redevelopment Authority exists. The legislation governing establishment of a 
CRA is “The Urban Redevelopment Law, Pennsylvania Act 385.” 

 

 

 



pg. 6 
 

SELLERSVILLE REVITALIZATION AREA 

 

 Vision 

The vision for the Sellersville Revitalization Area is one that seeks to help repair, 
restore, and revitalize the community and the local economy through a strong and 
well managed public-private partnership, guided by a well-defined management and 
implementation plan, achieved through a participatory process of the local 
community invited and encouraged to become fully vested. 

 

 Mission 

The mission is to identify those contiguous areas within Sellersville Borough, where 
the community’s economic security is threatened, their quality of life is reduced, and 
the opportunity for a brighter future is increasingly diminished. And where, with 
active support, resources and participation of the County’s Industrial Development 
Authority, Redevelopment Authority in cooperation with Planning Commission 
those dangers can be addressed, the trends can be reversed, and the seeds of a new 
prosperity can be planted.  

 

 Goals 

The goal of establishing a CRA is to provide incentives and direction in a 
comprehensive fashion, particularly in the areas of land use planning, zoning and 
regulatory regimes, in a way that addresses barriers to economic growth while at 
the same time attracting new investment, both public and private. It seeks to 
accomplish these goals in order to provide family sustaining jobs, increased tax 
revenues for essential local services and quality education, resulting in an improved 
quality of life in and around the Revitalization Area for entire community. 

 

 

 

 



pg. 7 
 

Brief Overview of Sellersville Borough 
 

Sellersville Borough is located in the upper portion of 
Bucks County, approximately 30 miles north of 
Philadelphia and 22 miles south of Allentown.  
According to the U.S. Census of 2010, there were 
4,249 people residing in the borough. 

Sellersville was founded in the early 18th century. It 
was centered on a major road known as Bethlehem 
Pike that connected Philadelphia to Bethlehem and 
the rest of what was then far Western Pennsylvania. 
Sellersville grew slowly until the Industrial Revolution. 
In the 1860s the North Pennsylvania Railroad was 

built, running parallel to Bethlehem Pike. This stimulated the growth of industry and brought a 
wave of population growth to Sellersville and the surrounding area. 

However, widespread industrial decline occurred over several decades in the mid-to-late 
twentieth century which impacted industries located in Sellersville as they shut down or 
relocated and Sellersville became mainly a residential town.  

One of the borough’s largest employers was the U.S. Gauge Division which employed hundreds 
of people in its Sellersville manufacturing plants.  The company, which operated in the mid-
1900’s, shut down all operations in the borough in 2008.  After the facilities located at 900 
Clymer Avenue were vacated, nearly all structures were demolished, leaving behind an area of 
the borough in need of revitalization that would not be possible without public assistance. 

General Description of Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area 

The Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area encompasses over 50 parcels spanning 46± acres of 
land and is more commonly known as the former Ametek U.S. Gauge Division property located 
at 900 Clymer Avenue in Sellersville Borough (the “Site).  The Site is a former pressure and 
vacuum gauge manufacturing facility which operated from approximately 1957 until 2008.  The 
Site is irregular in shape and is surrounded by woods and residential areas to the north, south, 
east and west.  The Site is comprised of over 50 vacant parcels and paper streets. 

In 2012 all building structures on the site were demolished, except the concrete foundations 
and slabs which were left intact and a shed housing a groundwater pump and treat system.  
The utilities associated with the former Site’s operation were disconnected prior to demolition 
in 2012 with electrical service maintained for the on-site groundwater well.   



pg. 8 
 

Boundary Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sellersville Revitalization Area Boundaries outlined in red 

 
The Area is irregular in shape and is surrounded by woods and residential areas to the north, 
south, east and west. It is comprised of 50± parcels totaling 46± acres located entirely in the 
Borough of Sellersville. The boundaries for the Area can be described as follows: 

- Diamond Street and residential to the south 
- Wyckford Drive and residential to the east 
- Mews Drive and residential and wooded area to the north 
- East Pine Street and wooded area to the west 

 

 

 



pg. 9 
 

Existing Conditions 

The following section reviews the existing conditions in relation to the criteria used to 
determine whether the area merits designation as a Certified Redevelopment Area as defined 
by Act 385.  This report cites specific examples of the conditions satisfying three of the criteria:  

 

1. unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions  

2. inadequate planning  

3. excessive land coverage  

4. lack of proper light, air and open space  

5. faulty street and lot layout  

6. defective design and arrangement of buildings  

7. economically or socially undesirable land use  

Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions 

The Site operated as a manufacturing plant from 1957 until 2008 when the facility was closed 
and is a classic Brownfield property as defined by EPA: 

“Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may 
be complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, 
pollutant, or contaminant.” 

Brownfields create an overall negative perception of the community in which they are located 
because of the real or perceived presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant.  
The subject area is a classic example of a brownfield site and there have been extensive studies 
and reports over the past few decades regarding the environmental conditions.  A summary of 
the environmental studies and reports is provided for below. 

Furthermore, all of the parcels that comprise the area are vacant.  Vacant lots provide clear 
evidence of inadequate conditions and can also attract crime, vandalism as well as rodents and 
other vermin which present unsafe and unsanitary conditions.   

Faulty street and lot layout and inadequate planning 

Evidence of faulty street and lot layout and inadequate planning is demonstrated by the 
numerous paper streets and large number of vacant parcels within the subject area.  The 



pg. 10 
 

streets and lots have been poorly laid out and are clearly inadequate for the industrial zoning 
district in which the area is located and are poorly configured for reuse as a business park. 

Economically or socially undesirable land use 

Vacant properties are undesirable as they deprive the community of revenue from business and 
real estate and create a negative perception of the community.  Moreover, vacant industrial 
properties deprive the community of good paying jobs, and as a result, property values 
depreciate placing an undue burden on both municipal services and taxpayers.  This is harmful 
to the overall social and economic well being of the community and limits the potential for new 
investment to occur to the scale the community desires and needs. 

Documented environmental conditions provide clear evidence of Unsafe, unsanitary, 
inadequate or overcrowded conditions and economically or socially undesirable land use.  The 
Redevelopment Authority commissioned a Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) on the property and a Phase I report dated February 2014 and Phase II report dated June 
19, 2014 was prepared by Langan Engineering and Environmental Services.  The following is a 
summary of the reports which includes previous investigations and regulatory correspondence 
provided for in the Phase I and II ESA reports. 

Consent Order 

A Consent Order was issued to Ametek on June 29, 1990 by the US EPA under Section 3008(h) 
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended by the Hazardous and Solid 
Waste Amendments of 1984, 42 U.S.C. Section 6928(h) for the site.  The Consent Order was 
signed by Ametek on June 11, 1990.  A summary of the RCRA activities and selected remedy is 
provided below. 

Based on a review of past and present site environmental practices, soil and groundwater 
sampling activities, historical investigations and ongoing remedial activities at the stie (i.e. 
operation of a groundwater recovery and treatment system), groundwater is the medium of 
concern for continued environmental activities a the site, and the focal point for the remedy 
selected by EPA. 

The selected remedy consists of the following: 

- Establishment of a Technical Impracticability (TI) Boundary for site groundwater that 
coincides with the site’s boundary; 

- Continued operation and maintenance of the site’s groundwater extraction and 
treatment system; 

- Long-term groundwater COC stability monitoring and reporting; and  



pg. 11 
 

- Development and filing of a site environmental covenant with the PADEP (i.e. per Act 
68, the Uniform Environmental Covenants Act) to memorializing long term site 
engineering control requirements, development restrictions and groundwater-related 
use restrictions at the site. 

Draft RCRA Facility Investigation Report 1997 

The result of the RCRA Facility Investigation Report (RFI) completed by Ametek pursuant to the 
Consent Order were presented to the EPA in the Draft RCRA Facility Investigation Report, 
Groundwater Technology, Inc. dated February 24, 1997 (Draft RFI Report).  The scope of the RFI 
activities included the characterization of site groundwater, soil, surface water and sediment, a 
soil gas survey, continuous hydrogeologic groundwater level monitoring survey, and a Baseline 
Risk Assessment (BRA).  The Drat Rport provided details on the following potential source area: 

- Northern Areas – Former Wet Lagoon Area, Paint Storage Shed, Chip Shed and the 
Former Process Waste Transport Line. 

- Southern Area- Former Dry Lagoon Area 

The history of remedial actions (e.g. sludge and soil removal) conducted in the Former Wet 
Paint Lagoon Area and the Former Dry Lagoon Area in 1983, as well as investigation work 
conducted in these areas and the other area listed above, are discussed extensively in the Draft 
RFI report.  However, no soil or analytical date, post excavation sampling, or analytical data 
were identified for the sludge removal of the Wet Lagoon.  Additionally, no sampling for 
inorganics was identified for the Dry Lagoon closure. 

Based on the characterization data collected and the results of the BRA, the primary potential 
exposure pathway was concluded to be the migration of VOCs from groundwater into down 
gradient off-site residential wells.  EPA provided comments to the Draft RFI Report in a letter 
dated September 11, 1997, and in response, Ametek prepared a report titled RCRA Facility 
Investigation Response Letter Report to EPA Comments date December 9, 1997.  This report set 
the stage for the additional groundwater-related site characterization activities conducted from 
1999 to 2008. 

As established during the RFI, the VOCs of concern in the site groundwater are the chlorinated 
VOCs cis-1,2-dichloroethene (cis- 1,2-DCE), 1,1-DCE, tetrachloroethene (PCE), toluene, 1,1,1-
TCA and TCE.  Based on the findings presented in the Draft RFI report and the EPA comments, 
additional characterization activities were conducted from 1999 through 2008 as described 
below. 

 

 



pg. 12 
 

Additional Groundwater Investigation (1999-2008) 

Various additional environmental investigation activities have been conducted at the Ametek 
site since the submittal of the Draft RFI report.  Based on the results of the 1997 RFI, site 
investigation activities were focused on the primary media of concern, groundwater. 

The following conclusions regarding site groundwater were made and approved by the EPA 
based on the results of the investigation activities conducted: 

- Hydraulic control of the impacted groundwater at the site was maintained via the sites 
existing IRM groundwater extraction and treatment system. 

- As described in the 3rd Quarterly Letter Report on Additional Environmental 
Investigation Activities, dated December 2003, EPA was concerned that 1,4-Dioxane 
may be present in groundwater given the elevated levels of 1,1,1-TCA detected in some 
of the monitoring wells.  Therefore, beginning from August 2003, 1,4-Dioxane was 
added to the list of constituents sampled during the semi-annual groundwater sampling 
events. 

- With the exception of monitoring wells MW-21S, MW-21D (new) and MW-22D, site 
groundwater with COC levels (e.g. chlorinated VOCs) above EPA MCLs, was confined to 
site property boundaries, and site groundwater monitoring wells. 

- Remaining local residences served by domestic water supply wells have been shown to 
be free of impacts by site COCs during 12 sampling events conducted from 2003 to 
2008. 

- The closest known public water supply well, PBA-10 located approximately three 
quarters of a mile northeast of the site, has been deactivated indefinitely by the PBA.  
While in operation, water provided by PBA-10 was treated with an air stripper to 
remove VOCs prior to distribution. 

- According to PBA, a preliminary wellhead protection area (WHPA) has been established 
for the boroughs of Perkasie and Pennridge.  Only the WHPA for well PBA-10 contacts 
the site boundaries, and as described above, well PBA-10 has been deactivated. 

- Based on Perkasie Borough Ordinance 186-14 and according to PBA, if public water is 
accessible to a residence within Perkasie Borough, then PBA would not issue a permit 
for a private well.  Public water was available to all residents in Perkasie Borough; 
therefore, no new private wells may be drilled. 

- Indoor vapor intrusion as a result of the site groundwater plume was negligible and does 
not pose a human health risk. 

RFI Approval (1997-2009_ 

In a letter date May 14, 2009, EPA issued a final approval of the Ametek RFI.  Based on the date 
collected as part of the RFI, and EPAs approval of the RFI Phase of work, site groundwater is the 



pg. 13 
 

medium of concern for continued environmental activities at the site, and the focal point for 
the selected remedy.  Long term goals for site groundwater are 1) The eventual attainment of 
the MCLs at and beyond the TI boundary of the chlorinated VOCs COCs described in these and 
previous reports, and 2) The continued monitoring of 1,4-Dioxane levels in site groundwater 
with respect to EPAs Screening Concentration for 1,4-Dioxane of 6.1 µg/l during remediation to 
attain the aforementioned MCLs. 

US EPA Final Decision 

Based on a review of past and present site environmental practices, soil and groundwater 
sampling activities, historical investigations and ongoing remedial activities at the site (i.e. 
operation of a groundwater recovery and treatment system), groundwater was the medium of 
concern for continued environmental activities at the site, and the focal point for the selected 
remedy. 

The selected remedy consists of the following: 

- Establishment of a Technical Impracticability (TI) Boundary for site groundwater.  The 
site TI boundary conforms to the site’s conceptual hydrogeological model, and 
incorporates elements of EPAs Guidance for the Evaluating the Technical 
Impracticability of Groundwater Restoration (EPA/540-R-93-080). 

- The TI Boundary coincide with site’s boundary. 
- Continued operation and maintenance of the site’s groundwater extraction and 

treatment system. 
- Long-term groundwater COC stability monitoring and reporting. 
- Development and filing of a site environmental covenant with PADEP (i.e. per Act 68, 

the Uniform Environmental Covenants Act) to memorialize long term site engineering 
control requirements, development restrictions and groundwater related use 
restrictions at the site. 

Langan Phase I ESA – February 2014 

The specific RECs that were identified in the Phase I ESA include: 

REC-1 – Identified Soil Impacts 

Langan reviewed numerous reports and investigations which have been conducted on the 
site. A majority of these investigations were conducted prior to the change in the PADEP 
MSCs. Based on a review of the analytical date, the following impacts were identified: 

1. TCE – Maximum detected concentration of 1.3 mg/kg exceeds the soil to 
groundwater residential (.5 mg/kg) and non-residental (.5mg/kg) values. 



pg. 14 
 

2. Lead – Maximum detected concentration of 542 mg/kg exceeds the soil to 
groundwater residential (450 mg/kg) and non-residential (450 mg/kg) values and 
direct contact residential (500 mg/kg) value. 

3. Mangenese – Maximum detected concentration of 2,650 mg/kg exceeds the soil to 
groundwater residential (2,000 mg/kg) and non-residential (2,000 mg/kg) values. 

REC 2 – Soil Vapor 

Volatile organic compounds have been identified as impacting the site from historic 
operations.  The EPA approved final remedy includes a pump and treat system, as well 
as, pending institutional and engineering controls.  Soil vapor from these identified VOC 
impacts in on-site groundwater has the potential for vapor intrusion to occur within 
future building construction. 

REC 3 – Historical Operations 

Groundwater impacts have been identified and previously evaluated based on the 
historic operations of the site. However, no sub-slab soil investigations have been 
performed in the remaining building foundation. Based on a review of the historical site 
descriptions several trenches were identified in an area known as the "nickel room."  
This area was identified as being the location for metal plating operations by dipping the 
material to be platted into a succession of trenches.  The integrity of these trenches has 
not been evaluated. The Historic Operations also includes the following areas; Former 
Paint Shed, Former Chip Shed, Former Process Area, and Former Waste Transfer Line. 
Additionally, the waste product from these sub-surface interior trenches was 
transported to the Former Wet Lagoons via an underground pipe system.  The potential 
exists for soil impacts to exist below these areas and this has been identified as REC 3. 

REC 4 – Former Wet Lagoon 

Based on a review of the historic documents and reports, waste product from the 
historic operations, including heavy metals and VOC's, were piped directly to a settling 
lagoon. The 1997 RFI indicated that the sludge from the former wet lagoon was 
excavated and properly disposed; however, no post excavation soil sampling was 
performed prior to backfilling.   

REC 5 – Former Dry Lagoon 

Based on a review of the historic documents and reports, waste product from the 
historic operations, including heavy metals and VOC's, were piped directly to a Wet 
Lagoon. Upon reasonable drying, the sludge's were moved to the Dry Lagoon. The 1997 
RFI indicated that the sludge's from the Former Dry Lagoon was excavated and properly 



pg. 15 
 

disposed; while VOC sampling was performed, no indications of analytical sampling was 
performed for metals prior to backfilling.  

Based on the findings of the Phase I ESA, Langan recommended a Phase II ESA be conducted. 
The purpose of the Phase II ESA was to identify the presence or likely presence of potential soil 
impacts associated with the identified RECs listed above. The proposed Phase II activities 
included the collection of soil and soil gas samples for analysis of the most likely constituents. 

Langan Phase II Environmental Site Assessment – June 19, 2014 

Conclusion 

Langan collected soil and soil gas samples for laboratory analysis from six AOIs, which were 
determined to be areas more likely to exhibit impacts to the selected media based on 
information ascertained from a Phase I ESA completed for the site. 

Based on the analytical results obtained for this focused Phase II assessment, the following 
constituents of concern were detected in soils at concentrations above the PA residential and 
non-residential soil-to-groundwater MSCs: 1 A-dioxane, tetrachloroethene, vinyl chloride, 1,1-
dichloroethene, trichloroethene, manganese, and nickel. None of the constituents analyzed 
exceeded their corresponding PA Direct Contact MSCs. 

Constituent concentrations that exceed the PA Soil-to-Groundwater MSCs represent potential 
sources of impacts to groundwater. Ongoing RCRA obligations of AMETEK include the continued 
long-term operations and maintenance of the site's groundwater extraction and treatment 
system and long term monitoring of groundwater to ensure protection of potential receptors. 
These ongoing obligations to control and monitor site-related groundwater impacts provide 
assurances that the soil to groundwater pathway is incomplete because the groundwater 
exposure pathway is protected. If there is interest in pursuing a release of environmental 
liability via the Pennsylvania Land Recycling Program, attainment of the PA Site Specific 
standards via pathway elimination should be able to be supported. 

Arsenic concentrations were identified in soils at multiple AOis, exceeding the Residential Soil 
Direct Contact MSC, but the concentrations were below the Non-residential Direct Contact MSC 
and Residential and Non-Residential Soil to Groundwater MSCs. Arsenic is known to be 
naturally occurring in the soils of Pennsylvania, and it appears that these levels are consistent 
with reported natural background levels. According to Vosnakis and Perry\ overall 
natural/background concentrations of arsenic in Pennsylvania are between 1 .3 mg/kg or ppm) 
and 67.7 mg/kg, with a median concentration of 10.3 mg/kg. According to Shacklette and 
Boerngen2 , arsenic concentrations in shallow soil in the United States range from non-detect 
to 97 mg/kg. Soil arsenic concentrations in Pennsylvania range from 3.8 mg/kg to 31 mg/kg, 
with a mean of 13 mg/kg. These Pennsylvania-specific values were determined from 



pg. 16 
 

Shacklette's and Boergen's dataset published online at the following link: 
http:tin.er.usgs.gov/metadata/ofr-81-197.faq.html.  Concentrations of arsenic at the Site (ranging 
from 0 to 28 mg/kg) fall between these natural/background ranges. Additionally, Based on a 
review of publicly available US EPA records on the site, previous subsurface investigations have 
indicated that bedrock beneath the site consist of soft red to reddish brown siltstones, shale 
and fine grained sandstone inter-bedded with gray to almost black units of shale and argillite. 
These inter-fingered sequences of reddish and grayish sedimentary rocks comprise the 
Brunswick Formation and Lockatong Formation. Arsenic is known to be present in naturally high 
concentrations in these formations particularly in the shale. 

A geophysical anomaly that resembles a potential underground storage tank (UST) with an 
approximate volume of 2,000-gallons was identified by the geophysical survey performed on 
May 19, 2014. Soil boring TL-3 was advanced and a sample collected from a depth of 1.5-2. 0 ft 
bgs and 5.0-5.5 ft bgs to investigate potential soil impacts near this suspect UST. The results 
from these samples identified concentrations of metals which exceeded the PA Act 2 Soil-to 
Groundwater MSC for manganese and the PA Act 2 Residential Soil Direct Contact MSC for 
arsenic. The soil samples from this area required dilution by the laboratory, reportedly because 
of interference caused by matrix interference. TICs were reported for these sample results 
which have the potential to be associated with petroleum products; however the results are 
not conclusive. The presence of tentatively identified petroleum hydrocarbons indicates a 
potential for petroleum hydrocarbon releases to soils and further investigation of the potential 
UST should be considered if an Act 2 Release of Liability is desired. In addition, the suspected 
UST location should be further evaluated to confirm the presence/absence of a UST and to 
determine the regulatory status and likely closure requirements. 

 

 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 



pg. 17 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

1 Clymer Ave 
entrance  

x x   x x 

2 Pad - NW x x   x x 
 

  

Photo #1 

Photo #2 

Photo #1 



pg. 18 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate  

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

3 Clymer Ave  x x   x x 
4 Pad - W x x   x x 

 

 

 

Photo #3 

Photo #4 



pg. 19 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

5 Clymer Ave  x x   x x 
6 Pad - W x x   x x 

 

Photo #5 

 

Photo #6 



pg. 20 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 

 
  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

7 Lot facing NE x     x 
8 Former 

Process Area 
x     x 

Photo #7 

Photo #8 



pg. 21 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

9 Former Process 
Area 

x     x 

10 Former nickel 
room 

x     x 

Photo #9 

Photo #10 



pg. 22 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

11 Paint shed x     x 
12 Chip shed x     x 

 

Photo #11 

Photo #12 



pg. 23 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

13 Transformer pad x     x 
14 Waste 

Transportation Line 
x     x 

 

Photo #13 

Photo #14 



pg. 24 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

15 Pad - UST x     x 

 

Photo #15 



pg. 25 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

  Conditions of Blight  
Photo 

# 
Location Unsafe 

unsanitary 
inadequate 

overcrowded 

Inadequate 
planning 

Excessive 
land 

coverage 

Lack of 
proper light, 
air and open 

space 

Faulty street 
or lot layout 

Economically 
or socially 

undesirable 

16 Dry Lagoon x     x 
17 Wet Lagoon x     x 

Photo #16 

Photo #17 



pg. 26 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

 
1) LETTER OF SUPPORT – SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH  

 
2) RESOLUTION - BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



pg. 27 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

Letter of Support – Sellersville Borough 





pg. 28 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

RESOLUTION – BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 



pg. 29 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE COUNTY OF BUCKS CERTIFYING CERTAIN AREAS 

OF THE BOROUGH OF SELLERSVILLE CONTAINING LANDS OF THE 
SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REVITALIZATION AREA 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks is the official advisory agent to 
the County of Bucks in matters pertaining to the general planning or land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks has made study of certain areas 
in the County of Bucks, a description of which is attached hereto and marked Exhibit "A"; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks has examined the above 
described area and finds that it presents some or all of the following characteristics which 
warrant its being considered a Redevelopment Area as defined by the Urban Redevelopment 
Law, approved the 24th day of May, 1945, P.L. 991: 
 

a. Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions of dwellings therein 
b. Inadequate planning of the area 
c. Excessive land coverage of the buildings thereon  
d. Lack of proper light, air and open space 
e. Defective design and arrangement of the buildings thereon  
f. Faulty street and lot layout 
g. Economically or socially undesirable land use 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks 
that: 
 

a. It is found and determined that the above-described area is a blighted area because of the 
existence of a combination of some or all of the conditions enumerated above. 

b. The above described area is hereby certified to the Redevelopment Authority of the 
County of Bucks as a Redevelopment Area as defined by the Urban Redevelopment Law, 
supra. 

 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the 
Planning Commission of the County of Bucks at it s meeting held on the ____ day 
of_________________, 2014. 
 
 
              
       _______________________________ 

      Secretary 
 
 



pg. 30 
 

Section II – Certified Redevelopment Area Plan 

Introduction 

The Certified Redevelopment Area Plan sets forth the redevelopment objectives for the 
Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area. This redevelopment plan builds on the findings of the 
Existing Conditions Report of August 2014. A redevelopment plan is necessary to enable and 
implement revitalization to the scale the community both needs and desires. 

Boundaries 

 
 

The Area is irregular in shape and is surrounded by woods and residential areas to the north, 
south, east and west. It is comprised of 50± parcels totaling 46± acres located entirely in the 
Borough of Sellersville. The boundaries for the Area can be described as follows: 
 

- Diamond Street and residential to the south 
- Wyckford Drive and residential to the east 
- Mews Drive and residential and wooded area to the north 
- East Pine Street and wooded area to the west 



pg. 31 
 

The following tax parcels encompass the Certified Redevelopment Area and are included in the 
Redevelopment Area Plan: 

39-008-194; 39-008-357; 39-008-367; 39-008-368; 39-008-369; 39-008-370; 39-008-371; 39-008-372; 
39-008-373; 39-008-374; 39-008-375; 39-008-376; 39-008-377; 39-008-378; 39-008-379; 39-008-380; 
39-008-381; 39-008-382; 39-008-383; 39-008-384; 39-008-385; 39-008-386; 39-008-387; 39-008-388; 
39-008-389; 39-008-390; 39-008-391; 39-008-392; 39-008-393; 39-008-394; 39-008-395; 39-008-396; 
39-008-397; 39-008-398; 39-008-399; 39-008-400; 39-008-401; 39-008-402; 39-008-403; 39-008-404; 
39-008-405; 39-008-406; 39-008-407; 39-008-408; 39-008-409; 39-008-410; 39-008-411; 39-008-412; 
39-008-413; 39-008-414; 39-008-415; 39-008-416; 39-008-417 



pg. 32 
 

Zoning Map 

 
 
Existing Land Use Map 

 

 
The Sellersville Borough 
Revitalization Area lies 
within the Industrial Zoning 
District of Sellersville 
Borough with a small portion 
zoned Medium Density 
Residential.   
 
There are no proposed 
changes to zoning 
ordinances or maps.  

 

Existing land use for the entire Area is vacant.   

 



pg. 33 
 

Preliminary Site Plan 

 

 
 
The preliminary site plan depicted above entails revitalizing this vacant brownfield site into a 
thriving business park which will result in hundreds of jobs in Sellersville Borough as well 
increased tax dollars for the community. The redevelopment of this 46 ± acres Area will include 
an industrial park subdivision with associated site improvements for use as light industrial, high-
tech industry, advanced manufacturing and flex-space. Total developable area is approximately 
27.14 acres.  Main access will be via a single cul-de-sac at Clymer Avenue. The preliminary site 
shows potential improvements on individual lots however this will be contingent on individual 
developers which would be subject to the requirements of local zoning and approvals by 
Sellersville Borough.  

 

Rehousing of families  

The entire area is vacant land zoned for industrial uses and no rehousing of families will 
be necessary. 

 



pg. 34 
 

Street layouts, street levels, and proposed traffic regulation 
 
A Traffic Impact Study dated June 30, 2014 was conducted by Langan Engineering to 
determine the scope of changes, if any, to existing street layouts, street levels and 
traffic regulation.  The following intersections were included in the study: 
 

- Main Street and Park Avenue and Diamond Street 
- Diamond Street and Clymer Avenue/Site Driveway 
- Main Street and Clymer Avenue 

Based on the results of the study, future operation of surrounding roadways will not be 
negatively impacted by the proposed development and can be constructed without 
adverse impact to the future traffic operation conditions. 

 
Paper streets that are located within the area are expected to be vacated. Access to the 
area is proposed via a single cul-de-sac that would extend from Clymer Avenue pictured 
below. 
 

 

 



pg. 35 
 

Acquisition and redevelopment costs  

The cost of acquisition is estimated to be approximately $1,000,000.00.The estimated 
cost of the redevelopment plan is expected to be in the neighborhood of $1.5 million 
providing total projected hard cost of $2.5 million for acquisition and associated 
improvements to implement this redevelopment area plan. Estimates for individual lots 
will be dependent on specific development proposals. 

 

Standards and controls 

Redevelopment of the Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area will be in conformity with 
this Redevelopment Area Plan and with Sellersville Borough Zoning and Code of 
Ordinances. Standards and controls for uses, density, land coverage, building area, 
parking and off-street loading will be established by Sellersville Borough Zoning Code. 
Building and site design will be included in redevelopment agreements. Additional 
controls will be in accordance with the EPAs Final Decision and Response Comments and 
Pennsylvania’s Voluntary Cleanup Program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



pg. 36 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

 
1) CERTIFIED REDEVELOPMENT AREA MAP  

 
2) SITE PLAN 

 
3) SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH ZONING MAP 

 
4) RESOLUTION - BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
5) RESOLUTION - BUCKS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
6) RESOLUTION - BUCKS COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
7) PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 



pg. 37 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

CERTIFIED REDEVELOPMENT AREA MAP 





pg. 38 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

SITE PLAN 



∆

∆

∆

∆

∆

∆

∆

∆

∆

Filename: \\langan.com\data\DT\data0\200056002\Cadd Data - 200056002\SheetFiles\LD Plans\200056002-CS101-0101.dwg   Date: 6/30/2014  Time: 13:07  User: shaas  Style Table: Langan.stb  Layout: CS-101

Stone Manor Corporate Center, 2700 Kelly Road, Suite 200, Warrington, PA 18976

T: 215.491.6500 F: 215.491.6501   www.langan.com

©
 
2

0
1

4
 
L

a
n

g
a

n

BOROUGH OF SELLERSVILLE, BUCKS COUNTY ZONING TABLE

ZONING DISTRICT: I-INDUSTRIAL

ITEM REQUIRED I - ZONE PROPOSED I - ZONE SECTION

Permitted Land Use:

Conversion Apt., Bus. College, Trade Sch., Music and Dance Sch., Police and Fire

Sta., Bus. Service, Motor Vehicle Service Sta., Office(Bus.,Professional,Public

Service,Financial), Vehicle and Equipment sales and rental, Contractor Office and

Storage, Manufacture, Assembly, Processing and Repair, Storage or sale of feed,

oil, lumber, grain or gas, Reasearch and testing, warehouse and distribution

including wholesale bus., Bus and Taxi terminal, Communication, Community garage

or parking, Principal supply utils., Rail terminal, Sewage Facilities.

Conversion Apt., Bus. College, Trade Sch., Music and Dance Sch., Police and Fire

Sta., Bus. Service, Motor Vehicle Service Sta., Office(Bus.,Professional,Public

Service,Financial), Vehicle and Equipment sales and rental, Contractor Office and

Storage, Manufacture, Assembly, Processing and Repair, Storage or sale of feed,

oil, lumber, grain or gas, Reasearch and testing, warehouse and distribution

including wholesale bus., Bus and Taxi terminal, Communication, Community garage

or parking, Principal supply utils., Rail terminal, Sewage Facilities.

160-24

Dimensional Requirements:

   Min. Lot Area
20,000 SF 162,222 SF

160-24

   Min. Lot Width 100 FT 100 FT 160-24

   Min.  Building Setback (Front Yard)

30 FT 30 FT 160-24

   Min. Side Yard

20 FT(40 FT AGGREGATE) 20 FT(40 FT AGGREGATE)

160-24

   Min. Rear Yard 30 FT 30 FT 160-24

   Max. Bldg Height 40 FT(3 STORIES) (i) 40 FT(3 STORIES)

160-24

Max. Building Coverage

50% 50% 160-24

Max. Building Floor Area Ratio

75% 75% 160-24

Buffer Yards: Zoning

In addition to required front side or rear yard. No

structure,manufacturing,processing,parking or material storage permitted in buffer yard.

15 FT 15 FT 160-82

Buffer Yards: SALDO

Buffer between Industrail/Commercial and Residential Uses. No

structure,manufacturing,processing,parking or material storage permitted in buffer yard.

50 FT (ii)

50 FT 135-22.B

Lot Design:

Minimum Length

500 FT (iii)

500 FT 135-19.A

Maximum Length

1,600 FT (iii)

846 FT 135-19.A

Side Lot Lines

Right angles or Radial to street lines Right angles or Radial to street lines

135-19.B

Lot Depths
Minimum: one times the average width Minimum: 1.43 times the average width

135-19.B

Maximum: 2 1/2 times the average width Maximum: 2.28 the average width

135-19.B

Parking: Off Street

1 Space / 600 SF of Total Gross Floor Area or 1 Space / 2 Employees at peak hours of

operation, whichever is greater

1 Space / 600 SF of Total Gross Floor Area or 1 Space / 2 Employees at peak hours of

operation, whichever is greater

160-106

Parking: Loading

For any lot > 6,000 SF, 1 loading space. For any lot > 20,000 SF, 1 loading space for initial

20,000 SF and one additional berth for each 60,000 SF above 20,000 SF

For any lot > 6,000 SF, 1 loading space. For any lot > 20,000 SF, 1 loading space for initial

20,000 SF and one additional berth for each 60,000 SF above 20,000 SF

160-109

12 FT X 55 FT X 14 FT 12 FT X 55 FT X 14 FT 160-109

Cul-de-sac streets:

Maximum Length

400 FT 1305 FT 135-18.C

Paved Turnaround Minimum Dimensions

Diameter = 80 FT to the outside curb; 100 FT to the legal right-of-way

200 FT 135-18.C

Approach to an intersection (Minimum) 50 FT straight course

365 FT 135-18.C

Driveway and Sidewalk Openings Minimum Width = 20 FT, Maximum Width = 30 FT Minimum Width = 20 FT, Maximum Width = 30 FT
160-109

Street Alignment

Horizontal Alignment Secondary Streets: 150 FT

Primary Streets: 300 FT

300 FT 135-18.D

Collector Streets: 500 FT

Signs:

160-100

Parallel:

Area: 4 SF / LF Front Building Length

Window sign exceeding 50% window area shall be included

TBD

In no case shall all areas exceed 25% of wall area

Freestanding:

160-100

Max. Number: 1 per Property

Max. Area:

1 SF / 2 FT of Lot Frontage

TBD

Max. Height:

20'

Notes:

(i) See section 160-67 - Maximum structural height for non human occupancy.

(ii) Where existing woods, streams or other water bodies, public roads (other than Arterial roads), or railroads exist along the boundary of any such proposed development, such use may serve to meet the buffer requirement, provided that is deemed acceptable by the Planning Commission or

Borough Council.

(iii) Modifications are possible in multifamily, commercial, and industrial developments

(iv) Unless topographic conditions and/or tract shape, density, dwelling style, etc., warrant an increase; such increase, however, to be at the borough's discretion. Length of the cul-de-sac street shall be measured from the center of the turnaround to the point of intersection of the center line of the

cul-de-sac street and the right-of-way line of the intersection street

(v) Clymer Avenue is characterized as a Primary street, requiring minimum of 300 FT center line radii for horizontal curve. This application requests that proposed road be considered a secondary street.

LOT # LOT AREA
DEVELOPABLE AREA

(BUILDING ENVELOPE)
SF ACRES SF ACRES

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
1 417,276 9.58 260,619 5.98
2 284,548 6.53 170,598 3.92
3 452,006 10.38 237,668 5.46
4 300,675 6.90 137,708 3.16
5 162,222 3.72 96,783 2.22
6 209,721 4.81 143,592 3.30

TOTAL 1,826,447 41.93 1,046,968 24.04

APPROVED  (REVIEWED) BY THE BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

_________________________________, 20_____

_____________________________________________________

 SIGNATURE

 _____________________________________________________

 DATE SIGNED

I (WE)________________________________________________________________

HAVE LAID OUT UPON MY (OUR) LAND SITUATED IN THE BOROUGH OF SELLERSVILLE,

COUNTY OF BUCKS, COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, LOTS AND STREETS

ACCORDING TO THIS PLAN WHICH IS INTENDED TO BE RECORDED.

WITNESS MY (OUR)  HAND AND SEAL THIS ___________DAY OF _______________, 20______.

_______________________________________________________

 PRINTED NAME

 _______________________________________________________

   SIGNATURE

OWNER'S STATEMENT OF INTENT

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL OR REVIEW

APPROVED  BY THE SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION

_________________________________, 20_____

_____________________________________________________

 SIGNATURE

 _____________________________________________________

 DATE SIGNED

APPROVAL OF BOROUGH OF SELLERSVILLE PLANING COMMISSION

_____________________________________________________

 SIGNATURE

 _____________________________________________________

 DATE SIGNED

APPROVAL OF BOROUGH ENGINEER

ON THE _______________DAY OF ______________, 20___ BEFORE ME, THE

SUBSCRIBER, A NOTARY PUBLIC OF THE COMMONSWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA,

PERSONALLY APPEARED ________________________________________________

______________________________________________________(NAME OF ALL

OWNERS), WHO ACKNOWLEDGED THIS PLAN TO BE THE OFFICIAL PLAN OF STREETS

AND PROPERTY SHOWN THEREON, SITUATED IN THE BOROUGH OF SELLERSVILLE,

COUNTY OF BUCKS, COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, AND DESIRED THAT THIS

PLAN BE RECORDED ACCORDING TO LAW.

_____________________________ _____________________________________

SEAL NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________________________________

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OWNER'S STATEMENT OF INTENT



pg. 39 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 

SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH ZONING MAP  



ZONING

160 Attachment 2

Borough of Sellersville

160 Attachment 2:1 03 - 01 - 2013



Single Family Residential

Single Family Residential

Suburban Residential

Planned Residential

Planned Residential

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Industrial

Medium Density Residential

Medium Density
Residential

WYCKFORD DR

SURREY CT

HUGHES AVE

E CLYMER AV E

E SURREY CT

E FAIRVIEW
AVE

DIAMOND ST

E PINE ST

E GRANDVIEW AVE

E BRANCH RD

MEWS DR

E PA
RK AVE

CHAD W YC K C IR

39-008-380

0.1333 Acres

39
-0

08
-3

73
0.

54
68

Ac
re

s

39-008-376
0.3329Acres

39
-0

08
-3

91

0.1
38

4 A
cre

s

39-008-369
0.2887Acres

39-008-370

0.1407 Acres

39-008-371

0.1296 Acres

39-008-372

0.1386 Acres

39-008-378
0.299 Acres

39
-0

08
-3

68
1.2

31
6

Ac
re

s

39-008-194

0.997 Acres

39-008-374
0.3593Acres

39-008-382
0.4032Acres

39-008-377

0.1468 Acres

39-008-379

0.1329 Acres

39-008-381

0.1337 Acres

39-008-384
0.2909Acres

39
-0

08
-3

85

1.0
73

4 A
cr

es

39
-0

08
-3

89

0.1
46

5 A
cre

s

39
-0

08
-3

90

0.1
27

1 A
cre

s39
-0

08
-3

92

0.1
30

4 A
cre

s

39
-0

08
-3

86

0.
96

92
 A

cr
es

39-008-388

0.171 Acres

39
-0

08
-3

93
0.

53
37

Ac
re

s

39
-0

08
-3

95

0.1
32

7 A
cre

s

39
-0

08
-3

96

0.1
48

4 A
cre

s

39-008-387
0.579 Acres

39
-0

08
-3

97

0.1
44

4 A
cre

s

39-008-398

0.1758 Acres

39-008-399

0.5362 Acres

39-008-400
0.2397Acres

39
-0

08
-4

14
0.

57
47

Ac
re

s

39
-0

08
-4

03
0.1

71
6

Ac
re

s39
-0

08
-4

02

0.1
37

5 A
cre

s

39
-0

08
-4

01

0.1
53

7 A
cre

s

39-008-419
4.2384Acres

39
-0

08
-4

13
1.1

35
Ac

re
s 39

-0
08

-4
15

0.
46

26
Ac

re
s

39
-0

08
-4

04

0.4
03

7
Ac

re
s

39-008-367
17.9518Acres

39-008-4120.9472Acres

39
-0

08
-4

16
1.0

81
3

Ac
re

s

39
-0

08
-4

07
0.6

87
9

Acre
s

39
-0

08
-4

09
0.5

60
2

Ac
re

s

39
-0

08
-4

17
1.2

92
9

Ac
re

s

39
-0

08
-3

57

0.7
75

3 A
cre

s

Source: Esri, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, GeoEye, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, and the GIS User
Community



pg. 40 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 
 

RESOLUTION – BUCKS COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 



pg. 41 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE COUNTY OF BUCKS WITH RESPECT TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN FOR THE 
SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REVITALIZATION AREA 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area, as described in “Exhibit A”, attached 
hereto was certified as a Redevelopment Area on the ____ day of ______________________ , 2014; 
and 
 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Urban Redevelopment Law of Pennsylvania, there was 
prepared a Redevelopment Area Plan; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, in order for the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks to obtain financial 
assistance in undertaking its Redevelopment Proposal certain approvals and determinations must be 
made; and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
1. That the Redevelopment Area Plan for the Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area, as described 
in “Exhibit A”, is hereby approved; and 
 
2. That the Redevelopment Proposal for the Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area was submitted 
for review to the Planning Commission and the Planning Commission after due consideration hereby 
certifies its approval to the Board of Commissioners of the County of Bucks; and 
 
3. That said Redevelopment Proposal is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan for the 
Borough of Sellersville and the plans for the neighborhood and district of which the subject is a part. 
 
This is to certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by 
the Planning Commission on this ____ day of ______________________ , 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary 

  



pg. 42 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 
 

RESOLUTION – BUCKS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS



pg. 43 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE COUNTY OF BUCKS 

APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL FOR THE 
SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REVITALIZATION AREA 

 
WHEREAS, there has been prepared and referred to the Board of Commissioners of the County of Bucks 
(herein called the Governing Body) for review and approval a Redevelopment Proposal for the 
Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area, dated _______________, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Redevelopment Proposal has been approved by the Planning Commission of the County 
of Bucks, as evidenced by the copy of said Body’s duly certified resolution approving said 
Redevelopment Proposal which is attached hereto, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks which is duly designated and acting 
official planning body for the Governing Body, has submitted its report and recommendation respecting 
said Redevelopment Proposal for the Project Area and has certified that the said Redevelopment Proposal 
conforms to the General Plan for the Locality as a whole, and the Governing Body has duly considered 
said report, recommendations, and certification of the planning body; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF BUCKS as follows: 
 
1. That it is hereby found and determined that the project is a blighted area and qualifies as an 

eligible project area under the Pennsylvania Urban Redevelopment Law of 1945, as amended. 
 
2.  That said Redevelopment Proposal for the project aforementioned having been duly reviewed and 

considered, is hereby approved, and the Chief Clerk be and is hereby directed to file said copy of 
the Redevelopment Proposal with the minutes of this meeting. 

 
3.  That it is hereby found and determined that the Redevelopment Proposal for the Project Area 

conforms to said General Plan for the Locality. 
 
4.  That in order to implement and facilitate the effectuation of the Redevelopment Proposal hereby 

approved, is found and determined that certain official actions must be taken by this Body, and 
accordingly, this Body hereby (a) pledges its cooperation in helping carry out such 
Redevelopment Proposal, (b) requests various officials, departments, boards and agencies of the 
Locality having administrative responsibilities in the premises likewise to cooperate to such end, 
and to exercise their respective functions and powers in a manner consistent with said 
Redevelopment Proposal; and (c) stands ready to consider and take appropriate action upon 
proposals and measures designed to effectuate said Redevelopment Proposal. 

 



pg. 44 
 

CERTIFICATE OF RECORDNG OFFICER 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that: 
 
She/he is the duly qualified and acting Chief Clerk of the County of Bucks, Pennsylvania, (herein called 
the “Locality”), and the custodian of the records of the Locality including the journal of proceedings of 
the Board of Commissioners of the County of Bucks (herein called the ‘Governing Body), and is duly 
authorized to execute this certificate. 
 
Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a resolution including the WHEREAS clauses, adopted at a 
meeting of the Governing Body held on the ___ day of _________________ 2014, (hereinafter called the 
Resolution of the Governing Body’). 
 
Also attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Redevelopment Proposal, which has been previously 
approved by the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks as evidenced by a duly certified resolution 
of the Planning Commission, attached to said Plan presented at said meeting, and approved by the 
Resolution of the Planning Commission. 
 
The Resolution of the Governing Body has been duly recorded in the journal of said meeting and is now 
in full force and effect. 
 
Said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with law and the by-laws of the 
Locality. To the extent required by law or said by-laws, due and proper notice of said meeting was given. 
A legal quorum of members of the Governing Body was present throughout said meeting, and a legally 
sufficient number of members of the Governing Body voted in the proper manner for the adoption of the 
Resolution of the Governing Body, including any publication, if required by law, have been duly fulfilled, 
carried out, and otherwise observed. 
 
The seal, which appears below, constitutes the official seal of the Locality and was duly affixed by the 
undersigned at the time this certificate was signed. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand this ___ day of  
 __________, 2014. 
 
 

(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              

Chief Clerk 
 

  



pg. 45 
 

ATTACHMENT 6 

RESOLUTION – REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF BUCKS



pg. 46 
 

Resolution #____________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 
OF BUCKS APPROVING THE REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL FOR THE 

SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REVITALIZATION AREA PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, there was presented to this meeting of the Governing Body of the 
Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks, for its consideration and approval, a 
copy of the Redevelopment Proposal for the Sellersville Borough Revitalization Area 
Project, date ________2014; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Plan was subject of a duly advertised public hearing held in the County 
of Bucks on the _____ day of ________________ 2014; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks has considered all 
public comments; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Proposal has been reviewed by the Board of the 
Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks at its regular meeting held this _____ 
day of _________________ 2014. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Redevelopment Authority of the 
County of Bucks as follows: 
 
 
1. That the Redevelopment Proposal is hereby in all respects approved and the  

Secretary is hereby directed to file a certified copy of said Redevelopment 
Proposal with the minutes of this meeting. 

 
2. That the Executive Director is authorized to take such actions and file such 

document as are necessary to effectuate said Proposal. 
  



pg. 47 
 

CERTIFICATE OF RECORDNG OFFICER 
 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that: 
 
She/he is duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Redevelopment Authority of the 
County of Bucks (hereinafter called the “Local Public Agency”), and the custodian of the 
records of the Local Public Agency including the minutes of the proceedings of the 
Governing Body of the Local Public Agency, and is duly authorized to execute this 
certificate. 
 
Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a resolution including the WHEREAS 
clauses, adopted at a meeting of the Governing Body held on the ____ day of 
_______________, 2014. 
 
Said Resolution has been duly recorded in the minutes of said meeting and is now in full 
force and effect. 
 
Said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with the law and 
bylaws of the Local Public Agency. To the extent required by said law or said bylaws, 
due and proper notice of said meeting was given. A legal quorum of members of the 
Governing Body was present throughout said meeting, and a legally sufficient number of 
members of the Governing Body voted in the proper manner for the adoption of said 
Resolution. All other requirements and proceedings under applicable law, said bylaws, 
said Resolution have been dully fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed. 
 
The seal, which appears below, constitutes the official seal of the Local Public Agency 
and was duly affixed by the undersigned at the time this certificate was signed. 
 
IN WITHNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand this _____ day 
of ________________ 2014. 
 
 
          (SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
        Secretary 
 



pg. 48 
 

ATTACHMENT 7  
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 



 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN 
SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH 

BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Pennsylvania Urban Redevelopment Law of 1945, P.L. 
991 as amended, a Public Hearing will be held on Monday, September 15, 2014 at 6:30 PM, at 
the Sellersville Borough Building, 140 East Church Street, Sellersville Borough, Pennsylvania 
18960. 
 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to consider the adoption of a Redevelopment Proposal for 
the Sellersville Borough Redevelopment Area Plan, dated August 2014, prepared by the 
Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks.  The project boundaries are generally as 
follows: 
 
The Redevelopment Area is irregular in shape and is surrounded by woods and residential 
areas to the north, south, east and west. The Boundaries include Diamond Street and residential 
to the south, Wyckford Drive and residential to the east, Mews Drive and residential and 
wooded area to the north, East Pine Street and wooded area to the west.  The Redevelopment 
Area encompasses approximately 46± acres of land with 53 vacant parcels and numerous paper 
streets.  
 
The following tax parcels encompass the Certified Redevelopment Area and are included in the 
Redevelopment Area Plan: 

 #39-008-194; #39-008-357; #39-008-367; #39-008-368; #39-008-369; #39-008-370; #39-008-
371; #39-008-372; #39-008-373; #39-008-374; #39-008-375; #39-008-376; #39-008-377; #39-
008-378; #39-008-379; #39-008-380; #39-008-381; #39-008-382; #39-008-383; #39-008-384; 
#39-008-385; #39-008-386; #39-008-387; #39-008-388; #39-008-389; #39-008-390; #39-008-
391; #39-008-392; #39-008-393; #39-008-394; #39-008-395; #39-008-396; #39-008-397; #39-
008-398; #39-008-399; #39-008-400; #39-008-401; #39-008-402; #39-008-403; #39-008-404; 
#39-008-405; #39-008-406; #39-008-407; #39-008-408; #39-008-409; #39-008-410; #39-008-
411; #39-008-412; #39-008-413; #39-008-414; #39-008-415; #39-008-416; #39-008-417 
 
Copies of the Redevelopment Proposal are available for public review Monday through Friday, 
9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., at the Sellersville Borough Manager’s Office, 140 East Church Street, 
Sellersville, Pennsylvania 18960, the office of the Redevelopment Authority of the County of 
Bucks, One North Wilson Avenue, Bristol, Pennsylvania, 19007 and Bucks County Free Library 
of Perkasie, 491 Arthur Avenue, Perkasie, Pennsylvania 18944. 
 
     

Patricia L. Bachtle 
   Chairman 
 



 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING 
 

 

 

 

Robert H. Grunmeier Room 

1260 Almshouse Road 

Doylestown, PA 18901 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Approval of Minutes of September 3, 2014 

 

4. Executive Director’s Report 

 
5. Bucks County Housing & Community Development: Introduction of new 

department name, new director, and new directions. 

~ Roger Collins, Director 

 

6. Act 247 Reviews 

 

7. Old Business 

 

8. New Business 
 

9. Public Comment 

 

10. Adjournment 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 

Wednesday, October 1, 2014 

2:00 P.M. 



2 

  



3 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 
September 3, 2014 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen; James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Edward 
Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Evan J. Stone; Walter S. Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
 

Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; David A. Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley; Margaret A. McKevitt, 
Donna W. Byers 
 

GUESTS: Commissioner Robert G. Loughery, Chairman 
Bucks County Industrial Development Authority: Jorden P. (Pete) Krauss, 
Executive Director 
Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks: Robert White, Executive 
Director; Jeff Darwak, Deputy Director; Allen Toadvine, Esquire, Solicitor 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF AUGUST 6, 2014 
Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Dowling, with the vote being 9-0, the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the August 6, 2014 meeting.  
 

4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush reported on the Middletown Grange Fair. The BCPC displays and handouts that were 
presented at the Grange were set up in the meeting room for the board to look over.  
 
Ms. Bush updated the board on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative, stating that the 
BCPC has been meeting with Quakertown Borough, who are enthusiastic about ongoing 
improvements to the downtown area. Ms. Bush said the BCPC continues to assist Bristol Borough 
with their improvement program, and have been guiding them on tax abatement programs for 
residential and non-residential properties. 
 
Ms. Bush reported it was another successful year for the Household Hazardous Waste and 
Electronics Collection Programs; particularly television recycling, although people are removing 
valuable metals from televisions before bringing them to the collection events.  
 
Ms. Bush provided the board with a handout: Bucks2Invest Update. The handout provides an 
overview of the program, and update on the financing programs that include: Bucks Guaranteed, 
Bucks Rebuilt, Bucks Renewed, Core Industry Fund, New Economy Fund, and the Taste & Tour 
Bucks County. She said the list summarizing the financing projects that have been approved by 
the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority (IDA), and leverage of private investments 



4 

is impressive. Mr. Krauss added that the IDA works very closely with the Redevelopment 
Authority of Bucks County, the Bucks County Commissioners, and the Bucks County Planning 
Commission; and has been focusing on what the public sector can accomplish and in what ways 
they can be encouraged to invest. 
 
Ms. Bush raised for discussion the recent newspaper article crediting the nation’s most dangerous 
intersection to be Street and Knights roads in Bensalem. Ms. Bush said the Director of Public 
Safety, Bensalem Township, and PennDOT did a good job handling questions and explaining the 
article that did not appear to be a fair assessment. 
 

5. SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH REVITALIZATION AREA REPORT & CERTIFIED REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA PLAN – Jeff Darwak, Bucks County Redevelopment Authority 
Jeff Darwak, Deputy Director for the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks (RDA), 
delivered a PowerPoint presentation on the Sellersville Borough Certified Redevelopment Area & 
Redevelopment Area Plan for the former Ametek site. The area is a vacant industrial site zoned 
Industrial with a small portion zoned Medium Density Residential. He stated the building 
structures in the area were demolished in 2012. The vacant property is a confirmed brownfield 
site that consists of 53 parcels, and which has faulty street and lot layout, and is both economically 
and socially undesirable. 

 
Mr. Darwak presented the RDA’s plan to acquire all 53 parcels and prepare the site for 
development.  In a plan summary, he recommended the zoning stay industrial and proposed 46 
acres would be redeveloped into a business park for light manufacturing and high tech industry. 
The total developable area is approximately 27.14 acres and the main access would be via Clymer 
Avenue. Mr. Darwak reported that a traffic impact study found the future operation would not 
negatively impact the proposed development. He said estimated cost to implement the 
redevelopment proposal is $1.5 million. 
 
Mr. Darwak requested the board support the designation of the area as a certified redevelopment 
area, and certify approval of the plan as presented by the RDA.  
 
Mr. Kisselback asked if some of the surrounding area is residential and if the existing zoning is 
industrial. Mr. Darwak answered yes, the existing area is zoned industrial and is surrounded by 
some residential and wooded areas. 
 
Mr. Dowling asked for a breakdown of the total projected cost of $2.5 million for the acquisition, 
and if Sellersville Borough has seen and is on board with the agreement. Mr. Darwak answered 
$1.5 million is the projected cost for the site improvements. The RDA would acquire the property 
for $1 million. He further responded that Sellersville Borough has been presented with and 
approves the RDA’s plan. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked if the industrial zoning is specified as light, medium, or heavy, and whether 
new zoning should be written to prevent less desirable industries (e.g. adult entertainment 
business) from going into the industrial park. Ms. Bush responded that current zoning could allow 
for a range of businesses, but it is not consistent with the vision. Commissioner Loughery added 
that with the County and RDA behind the plan there is no time constraint to sell the properties, 
and having spent time attending meetings with the Sellersville Borough Council and Planning 
Commission, it is clear they would like to go above and beyond in the development of the property 
to attract businesses they will be proud of.  
 



5 

Mr. Dowling inquired about the $4.5 million grant the IDA was awarded for the site. 
Commissioner Loughery explained that the $4.5 million is a loan; once they draw down the money 
for the acquisition and eventually clean-up and development of the property, it will amortize when 
the lots are sold. 
 
Ms. Pierce asked whether the parking lot area that is behind an abandoned gas station located 
about one block down from the demolished U.S. Gauge building (across the street from the 
Ametek site) is included in the acquisition/site plan. Mr. Darwak answered that it is not included. 
Commissioner Loughery said it was decided not to include the property in question at this time. 
He said the property has different zoning and was not included in the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s clean-up. 
 
Mr. McIlhinney asked how many separate private owners are involved with this site. Mr. Darwak 
said there are three. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions. 
Upon motion of Mr. Dowling, seconded by Mr. Cullen, the board unanimously passed Resolution 
#2014-03, determining the Sellersville Borough revitalization area of the former Ametek site a 
blighted area and certifying the area as a redevelopment area.  
 
Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board unanimously passed Resolution 
#2014-04, approving the Sellersville Borough Certified Redevelopment Plan as presented. 
 

6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of September 3, 2014 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Stone, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the motion carried to approve the September 
3, 2014 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There was no public comment. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino adjourned the meeting at 2:30 PM. 

 
Submitted by: 
Donna W. Byers, Staff Secretary 

 

  



6 

  



7 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director Report 

September, 2014 

 

Grants for Economic Development Projects – This news should be official by the time you read 

this report: BCPC has been successful in obtaining two grants from the Transportation and 

Community Development Initiative for two of our projects, through PennDOT and DVRPC. The 

projects are the Cross Keys study ($80,000) and the New Britain Borough study ($80,000). Both of 

these grants will be used to further the economic development work we are doing for these two areas. 

We will be using a portion of these grants for other consultants, such as traffic engineers, but this will 

enable us to greatly advance the studies and planning for these two areas. Bucks County was awarded 

three project grants. In addition to these two, Bensalem Township will get a grant for its waterfront 

district planning. 

 

We are waiting for Delaware Valley College to release its strategic plan for the college property, which 

will be one of the inputs into the land use and streetscape design for New Britain Borough. 

 

PECO Green Region Grants – Six Bucks County municipalities received grants from PECO for 

trails and open space projects. They were: 

Doylestown Borough – Stormwater Best Management Practices 

Langhorne Borough – Trail 

Upper Southampton – Trail 

New Britain Borough – Orchard Park 

Morrisville Borough – Park improvements 

 

DVRPC – I made a presentation to the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission economic 

development group on our Sellersville Borough redevelopment project of the Ametek site. 

 

Gaming Funds –  The law that allowed for gaming in Pennsylvania created a municipal grant 

program, so the host municipality (Bensalem), the County, and municipalities that touch Bensalem 

(Bristol Township, Lower Southampton, Hulmeville, Middletown) are eligible to receive some of the 

gaming proceeds. The Redevelopment Authority administers the program, which dedicates funds to 

infrastructure and services that are necessary to deal with the impacts of gaming in the community. 

The County will apply for funding to support the Lower Bucks Public Safety Training Center and for 

the Bucks County Health Improvement Project clinic in Bensalem. 

 

Montgomery County Comprehensive Plan – We received a draft copy of the new Montgomery 

County Plan. I will see if I can get a presentation for the Board. 

 

Access to the Internet statewide – When our staff is conducting citizen surveys, we often talk about 

how many people have internet access, as we evaluate using mail or email surveys. The U.S. Census 

has completed its census on computers and internet access, which revealed some interesting results. 

There is no data specifically for Bucks County in this initial report. 

 



8 

Of the 5 million households in Pennsylvania: 

81.4% have a computer 

73.7% have internet access 

58.7% have a handheld computer (tablet or smart phone) 

Most households have more than one device – only 22.1% have a laptop or desktop as their 

only computer 

This is lower than the U.S. as whole, where: 

83.8% have a computer 

74.4% have internet access 

Pennsylvania ranks 39th among states for people with handheld computers. 

Utah has the highest percentage of households with handheld computers: 73.3% 

West Virginia has the lower percentage: 51.5%  

 

 

 

  



9 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

September, 2014 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PLANNING 

 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular monthly planning commission meetings of New 
Britain and Perkasie boroughs, and Buckingham Township. 

 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Finalized and distributed the second 
draft to the township. Attended the Lower Makefield Township Planning Commission meeting 
to highlight some of the new material that was added in the second draft. 

 Middletown Township—Began review of the comprehensive plan, land use ordinances and 
other documents regarding policies and regulations for nonresidential development and economic 
opportunities.  

 Northampton Township Village Commercial Design Guidelines—Executed contract for 
the project and began staff discussions on project scope and scheduling. 

 Richboro Village Master Plan—Began collecting background information on Richboro. 

 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Completed second draft revisions. Held a meeting 
with comprehensive plan group to discuss second draft revisions.  

 Upper Southampton Township—Reviewing final draft of the Industrial Area Study report. 

 West Rockhill Township—Continued collecting background information on the village of 
Almont. Continued drafting the land use chapter.   

 Cross Keys Study—Continued inventory and data collection for the study and prepared a draft 
business survey and PowerPoint presentation.  

 Brownsville Road Study—Revised draft of initial report and PowerPoint presentation after 
meeting with Lower Southampton and Bensalem township staffs. 

 Solebury Township—Provided copies of revised draft comprehensive plan to township 
officials for review.  

 Springfield Township—Completed the sewage capacity analysis for the Development Area and 
Route 309 Corridor. 

 Yardley Borough––Met with Yardley Borough's zoning officer to discuss mapping changes and 
inclusion of riparian corridor protection in the comprehensive plan.  

 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 

 Provided information to the public on various topics including demographic and socioeconomic 
data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning, and municipal regulations.  

 Attended meeting of the Bicycle Task Force. 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings.  

 Continued to work on the creation of a comprehensive plan implementation progress model 
handbook to track and monitor recommendations outlined in planning documents.  

 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 

 14  Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 

 0  Sketch Plans 

 11  Municipals 



10 

 2   Sewage Facility Planning Modules 

 2   Traffic Impact Studies 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
William Penn Foundation: Poquessing Watershed Cluster 

 Reached out to groups potentially interested in educational training to become citizen monitors. 

 Worked with GIS Department to create maps for use during the public meeting/workshop and 
for identification of problem areas and potential visual assessment sites. 

 Developing watershed monitoring program and associated educational materials and guidelines. 

 Attended kick-off meeting on September 10.    

 Follow-up communique with residents interested in participating in the program.  

 Updated GIS map based on workshop participant feedback and stream or point sections they 
want to monitor. 

 Begin preparing for training workshops to be help in October. 
 

Natural Resources  

 Completed update of New Hope Borough floodplain ordinance to be in compliance with FEMA’s 
requirements. 

 Prepared the natural resources section for the Almont Village MEDI study. 
 
Alternative Energy   
> Attended a meeting with DVRPC and MCPC staff related to solar and wind energy technology and 

incorporating language in zoning ordinances to permit alternative energy. 
  
Integrated Water Resources Planning Work Program 

 Reviewed documents to identify watershed information, problem areas and proposed 
implementation projects documented. 

 Developed habitat assessment guidelines and worksheets that citizen monitors of Poquessing 
Watershed can utilize when conducting monitoring. The results can be used in other Bucks County 
watersheds. 

 
Coastal Zone Management 

 Had additional discussions with PaDEP staff concerning grant selection process following non-
funding of Phase II of the Neshaminy Creek Watershed Sediment Reduction Plan. 

 Spoke to DEP staff regarding recent CZM grant application proposal and restructuring of MS4 
program. 

 Considering ways that the current application could be modified to be in compliance with new 
MS4 requirements to determine if the grant application should be resubmitted in October. 

 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 

 Attended meetings with representatives from Doylestown Bike & Hike Committee and Heritage 
Conservancy regarding implementation of the Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Continued site analysis for the Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Started site analysis on Lower Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Developed informational fact sheets regarding trail planning efforts and funding requirements for 
three sections of the Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail and the Quakertown Rail Trail / Saucon Valley 
Rail Trail extension as a follow-up to the brainstorming session held in August relative to next 
steps for trails in Bucks County. 



11 

Recycling and Solid Waste 

 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting with current vendor.  

 Preparing all chapters of the Bucks County Municipal Waste Plan update. 

 Preparing reports for 2014 HHW season. 

 Finished draft of the Recycling Guide; working on getting it approved. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 

 Working on grant application for plan update. 
 
Employee Green Committee 

 Conducted a quarterly meeting of the BEGIN (Green) Committee. Reported on results and 
recommendations of the department paper use survey. 

 
Information to the Public 

 Presented to the Southeastern County Assessors Association of Pennsylvania (SECAAP). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

 
General Transportation Planning   

 Continued working on project to determine the feasibility of renaming Butler Pike to Business 
Route 202. Coordinated with PennDOT for review and comment. 

 Finalized DVRPC FY 2015 contract for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program. 

 Began development of request for proposals for Cross Keys Land Use and Transportation Study.  

 Participated in webinar for Congestion Management Program. 

 Attended PA Circuit Working Group Committee Meeting. 

 Attended PA Subcommittee Meeting of the RTC regarding Access Management. 

 Provided announcement to all municipalities regarding second round of the Multi Modal 
Transportation Fund. 

    
Public Transportation 

 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 

 Completed report development for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II.  

 Finalized DVRPC FY 2015 contract for Transit Support Program. 

 Reviewed Trenton Line Access Study and provided comments to DVRPC. 
  
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 

 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 

 Continued developing computer-enhanced imagery for Almont Study. Continued production of 
Transportation section. 

 Began reconnaissance for Richboro Village Study. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 

 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 

 Provided response to comments regarding TIP amendment request for three additional bridges 
for Act 13 funding. 

 Attended Information Resources Exchange Group Meeting. 



12 

 Attended Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 

 Attended Local Bridge Meeting Committee Meeting. 

 Provided assistance to several municipalities regarding Local Municipal Bridge Retro 
Reimbursement Program. 

 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 

 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 

 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 

 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 

 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 

 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 

 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 

 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 

 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 

 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 

 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 

 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 

 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 

 Continued updating and testing of latest GIS software versions on desktop systems. 

 Attended SE PA 9-1-1 GIS Shared Services meeting at Chester County GIS. 

 Met with ESRI representative to discuss ArcGIS Online application for Health. 

 Provided GIS Consortium updates to Hilltown Township and Perkasie Borough 

 Attended Penn State webinar on Open GIS Mapping. 

 Continued production of county Park and Recreation maps. 
 

GIS Map Production 
> Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
> Continued development of maps of county parks and facilities for print and web deployment. 
 
GIS Transportation 
> Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 































































































































































































BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING 

Robert H. Grunmeier Room 

1260 Almshouse Road 

Doylestown, PA 18901 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Minutes of October 1, 2014

4. Executive Director’s Report

5. Presentation: Montgomery County Comprehensive Plan Update

~ Jody Holton, Executive Director 

6. Act 247 Reviews

7. Old Business

8. New Business

9. Public Comment

10. Adjournment

Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 

Wednesday, November 5, 2014 

2:00 P.M. 



2 

  



3 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 

October 1, 2014 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen; James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Edward 
Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Evan J. Stone; Walter S. Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
 

Lynn T. Bush; David Johnson; Timothy A. Koehler; David A. Sebastian; 
Patricia Stockett; Maureen Wheatley 
 

GUESTS: Roger Collins, Director of Bucks County Housing 
and Community Development 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 
Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Dowling, with the vote being 9-0 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the September 3, 2014 meeting. There were no abstentions. 
 

4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush reviewed some of the highlights of her report.  She reported that the BCPC was 
successful in obtaining three grants from the Transportation and Community Development 
Initiative (TCDI). Bensalem Township received a grant ($100,000) to work on their riverfront 
master plan. Ms. Bush announced that she will invite Bensalem Township to a future board 
meeting to discuss their very interesting project. The Cross Keys multi-municipal transportation 
study and the New Britain Borough Main Street study received a grant of $80,000 each. She said 
that the grants will enable us to jump start these projects. 
 
Ms. Bush reported that she received a draft copy of the new Montgomery County Comprehensive 
Plan called Montco 2040: A Shared Vision. Their executive director, Jody Holton, AICP will come 
to our next meeting in November to give a presentation. 
 
Ms. Bush reported that tomorrow she and the BCPC transportation staff are meeting with SEPTA 
to discuss what SEPTA’s plans are for service in the coming year. 
 
On Friday, September 26, 2014, Ms. Bush attended a very interesting tour at Worth and Company 
in Plumsteadville. The tour was part of a new Metal Fabrication Training Program being offered 
to pre-qualified residents through a Community Development Block Grant provided by the Bucks 
County Commissioners partnered with Bucks County Community College. The program is part 
of the County Commissioners’ Economic Development Initiative for workforce development. 
Bucks County companies are looking for skilled workers to fill numerous positions. The program 
is an effort to enable residents to gain new skills in order to fill manufacturing job. She will report 
back to the board on how successful the students are in finding employment. 



4 

 
She reminded the board to please respond if you are attending the upcoming Vertical Screen Tour. 
She will send some follow up details to those who are attending. 
 
Board discussion focused on the workforce development program, the location of the Vertical 
Screen building, TCDI grants, and the Bensalem riverfront master plan.  
 

5. BUCKS COUNTY HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW DEPARTMENT NAME, NEW DIRECTOR AND NEW DIRECTIONS 
Ms. Bush introduced and welcomed Roger Collins, Director of Bucks County Housing & 
Community Development. She stated that Mr. Collins joined the department on July 28, 2014 
after serving for nearly 20 years with the Opportunity Council including 14 years as the executive 
director. He was also a key member of the former Commissioners’ Economic Development 
Advisory Board. She clarified regarding the department’s name change stating that the County 
Commissioners have centralized the business development function into one location and placed 
the focus onto housing and community development. 
 
Mr. Collins began by stating that the key goal of Housing and Community Development is to 
promote revitalization of communities, development of physical facilities, provision of community 
services and access to housing for all income groups. The department has six staff members and 
is completely funded by Housing & Urban Development (HUD) and the Housing Trust Fund. 
Some of the programs the department administers in partnership with banks and the community 
are the Community Development Block Grant Program, the HOME Program, the Emergency 
Solutions Grant Program and the Continuum of Care Homeless Assistance Program. These funds 
are used to make life better for residents and to improve and help communities thrive. Over 577 
low-income residents have been helped to purchase homes in Bucks County. He briefly described 
the Bucks County Housing Link which is a centralized point of contact for assessment and referral 
services for all residents experiencing a housing-related crisis or are homeless. It was started in 
April, 2014 and within the first few months the Housing Link has processed over 2,000 residents. 
 
He summarized by stating that he is developing a strategic plan, creating a housing inventory and 
forming a leadership group. He is encouraged by all the support he is receiving. He looks forward 
to working closely and sharing resources with the Bucks County Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Collins polled the group for questions. 
 
Mr. Dowling inquired about the make-up of the leadership group and the time frame. Mr. Collins 
replied that the initial group will be comprised of business people who have interest and are 
committed along with banks. He is using the Economic Development Advisory Board as a model 
that worked well. It will launch in early November. 
 

6. BCPC 2014 PROJECTS AND 2015 OUTLOOK 
Ms. Bush referenced the handout entitled BCPC 2014 Projects and 2015 Outlook which was given 
out at the meeting. Ms. Bush provided an overview of BCPC’s core functions and summarized 
programs and goals for comprehensive planning, special area planning studies, the Municipal 
Economic Development Initiative, countywide planning, Geographic Information Systems, 
transportation, trails, open space and farmland preservation, and service to the public and other 
departments. She detailed the new projects for 2015 including Next Generation Trails, Electronic 
Plan Processing, Hazard Mitigation, Solid Waste Management Plan and the Regional 911 Initiative. 
In 2015 she emphasized that the BCPC will become very involved in developing a strategic 



5 

housing plan and comprehensive plan for Housing & Community Development and will work 
closely with them on community building. Ms. Bush requested that the board share their ideas and 
comments indicating the types of projects they would like to see worked on. 
 
Board discussion followed about the East Coast Greenway Trail which will run from Maine to 
Florida and cross through Bucks County with part of it in Bensalem Township; the Municipal 
Open Space Preservation Program ending in 2016; the Regional 911 Initiative and the electronic 
plan processing project spearheaded by the Recorder of Deeds. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions. 
 

7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
Mr. Wydro referenced BCPC review #12035 for Falls Township pointing out that Paul 
Wojciechowski of All County, Inc. should be removed from the carbon copy list because he is 
deceased and the company is dissolved. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for any questions on the reviews. On motion of Mr. Wydro, 
seconded by Ms. Pierce the board approved the October 3, 2014 Act 247 reviews. Mr. Stone 
abstained on Yardley Borough review: BCPC #10688-A, Yardley Lakeview Properties – Final Plan 
of Land Development. 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no old business. 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There was no public comment. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino adjourned the meeting at 2:48 PM. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Patricia Stockett 

       Staff Secretary 

  



6 

  



7 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director Report 

October, 2014 

 

Cross Keys Study – We are moving ahead with our Cross keys project, which will address the traffic, 
development, and public improvements at the Cross Keys area. This includes meeting with property 
owners, doing an RFP for a traffic consultant, which will provide a fully grant-funded assessment of 
traffic conditions, and coordinating four municipalities. 

 

New Britain Borough Main Street Study – We are moving ahead with New Britain Borough 
project, which involves close coordination with Delaware Valley College and their strategic plan. Our 
goal is to make it more of a “college town.” The redevelopment of the John Knoell property is a key 
component to the future of this area.  We had a meeting with Delaware Valley College, New Britain, 
and Doylestown. We met with the president and two VPs of the College at the Life Sciences building. 
They explained some of their strategic planning for the next 20 years. They intend to keep the facilities 
within the current boundaries, which is the type of input that helps the surrounding communities plan 
for the future. They expect “university” status before year’s end. 
 

Leadership Exchange Conference – The Economy League of Greater Philadelphia invited a group 
of regional leaders to attend a session in Boston to see how Boston is competing in the world 
economy. We were exposed to many of the innovation centers, revitalized neighborhoods, and 
business leaders in Boston. The downtown area is thriving with much residential growth as well as 
new business development. 
 

Next Generation Tails – There are many grants available for trails now, and much emphasis is being 
placed on the development of trails statewide. Trails are always the most popular recreation facility 
among county residents, based on our resident surveys. The County planning commission staff is 
working on developing an action plan to move ahead with some trail projects. We will be hearing 
more on the trails study being done for lower Bucks County in December. 
  



8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  



9 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

October, 2014 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PLANNING 

 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular monthly planning commission meetings of New 
Britain and Perkasie boroughs, Buckingham Township, and the Quakertown Area Planning 
Committee.    

 Langhorne Borough—Presented an overview of the proposed comprehensive plan at the 
borough’s public hearing; Council voted unanimously to adopt the plan by resolution.  

 Middletown Township—Completed general review of the comprehensive plan, land use 
ordinances and other documents regarding policies and regulations for nonresidential 
development and economic opportunities.  

 Northampton Township Village Commercial Design Guidelines—Initiated research for 
the project. 

 Richboro Village Master Plan—Began collecting background information on Richboro; 
conducted fieldwork and took pictures.  

 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Held second meeting with the comprehensive plan 
group to discuss second draft revisions.  

 Upper Southampton Township—Reviewing final draft of the Industrial Area Study report. 

 West Rockhill Township—Continued collecting background information on the Village of 
Almont. Continued drafting the land use chapter.  Held meeting with the Planning Commission 
to go over the draft vision and principles, and update the township on progress.  

 Cross Keys Study—Began narrative production for the Land Use and Zoning, and Economic 
Development Conditions sections.  

 Brownsville Road Study—Revised draft of initial report and PowerPoint presentation after 
meeting with Lower Southampton and Bensalem township staffs. 

 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared public review draft plan and provided 
copies  to the township for their distribution pursuant to the MPC’s public review requirement  
process.  

 Springfield Township—Presented the draft sewage capacity analysis for the Development Area 
and Route 309 Corridor to the Township Planning Commission. Preparing the final analysis 
spreadsheets and GIS shape files for distribution to the Township. 

 Upper Makefield Township—Attended the township planning commission meeting to discuss 
the proposed Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan as it relates to mutual issues, topics or 
impacts in the vicinity of the municipal borders.  

 New Hope Borough—Revised the draft zoning amendment to the floodplain regulations based 
on meeting with Borough manager and zoning officer, and submitted it to PA Department of 
Community and Economic Development (DCED) for review. Initiated additional revisions to 
the revised draft based on comments by DCED.  

 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 

 Provided information to the public on various topics including demographic and socioeconomic 
data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning, and municipal regulations.  

 Attended meeting of the Bicycle Task Force. 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings.  



10 

 Continued to work on the creation of a comprehensive plan implementation progress model 
handbook to track and monitor recommendations outlined in planning documents.  

 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 

 16 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 

   2 Sketch Plans 

 13 Municipals  

   3 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 

   0 Traffic Impact Studies 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
William Penn Foundation: Poquessing Watershed Cluster 

 Developed training workshop for citizen monitors.  

 Prepared training manual based on site visits and field notes, potential project sites, how to 
conduct visual assessments and how to document findings.  

 Conducted two citizen monitoring workshops. 

 Continued outreach to individuals potentially interested in training to become citizen monitors. 

 Assisted resident with regard to new FEMA maps and options to secure flood insurance. 
 

Natural Resources  

 Working with DCED, FEMA and New Hope to finalize New Hope Borough floodplain 
ordinance to be in compliance with FEMA’s requirements. 

 Review of Plumstead Township and Silverdale Borough stand-alone floodplain ordinances. 

 Updating sections of the Natural Resources Matrix. 

 Assist nonprofit agencies with Bucks County ordinance language regarding natural resources 
protection. 

 
Integrated Water Resources Planning Work Program 

 Working with American Rivers to identify watershed-wide plans and studies conducted in Bucks 
County.  

 Attended the Delaware River Watershed Coalition Forum in Bethlehem, PA. 
 
Coastal Zone Management 

 Began developing topics and potential project(s) for 2015 round of CZM grant funding. 

 Ongoing communique with DEP regarding potential restructuring of MS4/TMDL programs. 
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 

 Attended meetings with representatives from Doylestown Bike & Hike Committee and Heritage 
Conservancy regarding implementation of the Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Met with representative of Warrington Township Bike and Hike Trails Committee to discuss 
county and township trail planning efforts and partnering opportunities. 

 Continued site analysis for the Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Continued site analysis on Lower Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 

 Attended Eastern PA Greenways & Trails Summit. 

 Presented an update on the Neshaminy Creek trail studies to the Bucks County Recreation 
Council. 



11 

Recycling and Solid Waste 

 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting.  

 Scheduled next month’s regional meeting at the Lancaster County Solid Waste Authority to tour 
their permanent HHW drop-off facility. 

 Reviewing all chapters of the Bucks County Municipal Waste Plan update. 

 Preparing the 2014 HHW reimbursement grant. 

 Preparing reports for 2014 HHW season. 

 Reviewing second draft of the Recycling Guide. 

 Working on scheduling HHW sites for 2015. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 

 Working on details to attend the PEMA statewide review of PA’s draft HM plan. 
 
Employee Green Committee (BEGIN) 

 Based on the approval by consensus at last quarterly meeting of the BEGIN (Green) Committee, 
forwarded to Executive Director the results and recommendations of the County department 
paper use survey. 

 
 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

 
General Transportation Planning   

 Continued working on project to determine the feasibility of renaming Butler Pike to Business 
Route 202. Coordinated with PennDOT for AASHTO review and comment. 

 Participated in teleconference for Congestion Management Program for Interstate 95 
Reconstruction Project. 

 Provided announcement to all municipalities regarding Green Light Go Traffic Signal 
Improvement Funding. Participated in webinar regarding GLG program. 

 Attended TMA Policy Work Program Committee Meeting. 

 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding FY2015 Work Program. 

 Attended Regional Bike Committee Meeting. Provided group with two suggested bike routes for 
“last mile” connections. 

 Attended Next Generation Trails Committee Meeting. 
    
Public Transportation 

 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 

 Attended meeting with SEPTA representatives regarding Annual Suburban Service Requests. 

 Attended Bethlehem Branch Ridership Modeling Kickoff Meeting. Reviewed proposed parking at 
each Bucks County Station. 

 Participated in teleconference regarding Roosevelt Boulevard Transit Project. 
  
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 

 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 

 Completed development of request for proposals for Cross Keys Land Use and Transportation 
Study and provided to Purchasing Department. Attended meeting with DVRPC regarding 
contract management. Reviewed draft Business Survey. Attended in-house staff meeting.  



12 

 Continued developing computer-enhanced imagery for Almont Study. Continued production of 
Transportation section. Reviewed proposed Vision and Principles. 

 Participated in reconnaissance for Richboro Village Study. 

 Attended Quakertown Area Planning Committee Meeting and provided information to the group 
regarding the Transportation Improvement Program. 

  
Transportation Improvement Program 

 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 

 Attended Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 

 Attended Request for Proposals Evaluation Committee Meeting for Bridge #220. Reviewed eight 
proposals and provide rankings to Purchasing. Attended ranking review meeting. 

 Provided assistance to several municipalities regarding Local Municipal Bridge Retro 
Reimbursement Program. Reviewed three LMBRRP applications. Attended project selection 
committee meeting. 

 Coordinated with Bensalem Township regarding potential funding for Interstate 95/Street Road 
Interchange Project. 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 

 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 

 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 

 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 

 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 

 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 

 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 

 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 

 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 

 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 

 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 

 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 

 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 

 Continued updating and testing of latest GIS software versions on desktop systems. 

 Attended SE PA 9-1-1 GIS Shared Services meeting at Montgomery County 9-1-1. 

 Attended GIS Shared Services meeting at Delaware County Emergency Services. 

 Met with County Commissioners to discuss Shared Services project. 

 Met with Tullytown officials to discuss and demonstrate Floodplain GIS Viewer. 

 Continued production of county Park and Recreation maps. 
 

GIS Map Production 
>  Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
>  Continued development of maps of county parks and facilities for print and web deployment. 
 
GIS Transportation 
>  Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 






















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	July 2014
	AGENDA
	Minutes of Meeting
	Staff Report
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision & Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews

	August 2014
	AGENDA
	Executive Director Report
	Staff Report
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision & Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews

	September 2014
	AGENDA
	Minutes of Meeting
	Executive Director Report
	Staff Report
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision and Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews

	October 2014
	AGENDA
	Minutes of Meeting
	Executive Director Report
	Staff Report
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision and Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews

	November 2014
	AGENDA
	Minutes of Meeting
	Executive Director Report
	Staff Report
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision and Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews

	December 2014
	AGENDA
	Minutes of Meeting
	Executive Director Report
	Staff Report
	Proposed 2015 Meeting Schedule
	Municipal Reviews
	Subdivision/Land Development Reviews
	Planning Module Reviews




